
 

 

November 24, 2025 

 

To, 

The General Manager 

BSE Limited 
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 

Mumbai – 400 001 

 

BSE Scrip: 539228 
 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Sub.: Notice of 15th Annual General Meeting along with Integrated Annual Report of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

Ref.: Regulation 34 and 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

This is to inform that the 15th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held 

on Saturday, November 29, 2025 at 02.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing/ Other 

Audio-Visual Means in accordance with the applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith the Integrated 

Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of AGM for the financial year 2024-25, 

which is being sent only through electronic mode to the Shareholders. 

 

The Integrated Annual Report containing the AGM Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s 

website https://www.galaglobalhub.com/ 

  

We would further like to inform that the Company has fixed Monday, November 24, 2025 as 

the cut-off date for ascertaining the names of the shareholders holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, who will be entitled to cast their votes electronically in respect 

of the businesses to be transacted as per the Notice of the AGM. 

 

This is for your information and records. 

 

Thanking you, 

For Gala Global Products Limited  

 

 

_______________________  

Prahlad Kumar Agarwal  

Managing Director & CFO 

DIN: 09851691 
 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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01 COMPANY INFORMATION 

 

Board of Directors: 

 

 Mr. Vishal M. Gala (Executive Director & Chairperson) 

(W.e.f. 14th December, 2010)  

 Mrs. Alpa Jignesh Pandya (Executive Director) 

(W.e.f. 3rd March, 2023) 

 Mr. Prahlad Kumar Agarwal (Managing Director & CFO) 

(W.e.f. 10th January, 2023) 

 Mr. Dhruv Modi (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

(W.e.f 10th February, 2023) 

 Mr. Umang Selani (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

(W.e.f 3rd September, 2022) 

 Mr. Vipul Maru (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

(W.e.f 3rd September, 2022) 

 Mr. Yagnik Movaliya (Non-Executive Independent Director) 

(W.e.f 16th April, 2025) 

 

Company Secretary: 

 

 Mrs. Vandana Arun Baldi (W.e.f. September 18, 2024)  

 Ms. Chhayaben Chandulal Mulani (Upto July 1, 2024)  

  

Committees of Board of Directors; 

 

Audit Committee 

 Umang Sanjaybhai Selani  - Chairman (W.e.f. 30th September, 2022) 

 Vipul Laxmichand Maru    - Member  (W.e.f. 30th September, 2022) 

 Dhruv Modi                        - Member (W.e.f. 18th July, 2023) 

  

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 Umang Sanjaybhai Selani   - Chairman (w.e.f 30th  September, 2022) 

 Vipul Laxmichand Maru     - Member (w.e.f 30th  September, 2022) 

 Vishal Mulchandbhai Gala  - Member (w.e.f 30th  September, 2022) 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 Umang Sanjaybhai Selani - Chairman (W.e.f. 30th September, 2022) 

 Vipul Laxmichand Maru   - Member (W.e.f. 30th September, 2022) 

 Dhruv Modi                       - Member (W.e.f. 18th July, 2023) 
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Auditors: 

 

Statutory Auditors 

 

 M/s. R B Gohil & Co.  

Chartered Accountants, 

1st Floor, K.P. shah House-1,  

K.V. Road, Jamnagar – 361001 

(W.e.f. 7th February 2025) 

 

 H. K. Shah & Co., 

Chartered Accountants, 

404, ‘SARAP’, 

Opp. Navjivan Press, 

Income Tax, Ahmedabad – 380014 

(Upto 14th November 2024)  

 

 

Secretarial Auditor:  

 

 M/s Deepti & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretary 

C-101, Naraina Vihar,  

New Delhi – 110028 

 

Registered Office:  

 

Gala Global Products Limited 

B-1 Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, 

B/H Old Navneet Press,   

Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad-380021 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

Registrar & Transfer Agent 

 

KFin Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Financial District, 

Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, Andhra Pradesh -500032 

E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com, Website: www.kfintech.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:einward.ris@karvy.com
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NOTICE OF 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Fifteenth (15th) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Gala Global 

Products Limited to be held on Friday, November 29, 2025 at 2:00 P.M. IST through two-way 

Video Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or other audio-visual means (‘OAVM’) to transact the following 

businesses: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:  

 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements: 

 

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 

ended on 31st  March, 2025 and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as 

circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

 

2. To consider and appoint M/s R B Gohil & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company and to authorize Board of Directors to fix their remuneration. 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being 

in force), M/s R B Gohil & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No. 119360W) be 

and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) 

consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of this 15th Annual General Meeting until the 

conclusion of the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration (exclusive 

of applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses) as shall be fixed by the Board 

of Directors of the Company from time to time in consultation with them.” 

 

3. Re-Appointment of Mrs. Alpa Pandya (DIN: 07013011) Executive Director of the Company 

as director liable to retire by rotation: 

 

To Re-appoint Mrs. Alpa Pandya (DIN: 07013011), Executive Director who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 
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SPECIAL BUSINESSES: 

 

4. To Appoint M/s Sachin Thakkar & Associates as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and subject to such other approvals 

as may be necessary, the Company hereby approves the appointment of M/s Sachin Thakkar & 

Associates [Membership No.: FCS 11396, Certificate of Practice No.: 15881] Practicing 

Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit 

for a term of five consecutive financial years, from the conclusion of 15th Annual General 

Meeting until the conclusion of the 20th Annual General Meeting, on such terms and remuneration 

as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the Auditor.” 

 

5. To give approval for Related Party Transactions 

 

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 

following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution; 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as 

amended from time to time, the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read 

with Rules made thereunder, other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any [including any 

statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], 

the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), 

permission(s) as may be necessary from time to time and basis the approval and recommendation 

of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, approval of the Members of 

the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to 

enter/continue to enter into Related Party Transaction(s)/Contract(s)/ 

Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transaction taken 

together or series of transactions or otherwise) with related parties defined in Section 2(76) of the 

Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, during financial year 2025-26, for an aggregate 

value not exceeding Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores), on such terms and conditions as 

detailed in the explanatory statement to this Resolution and as may be mutually agreed between 

the related party and the Company, provided that the said 

Transaction(s)/Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary 

course of business and at arm’s length basis. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to 

as ‘Board’ which term shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee of the Company and any 

duly constituted/to be constituted Committee of Directors thereof to exercise its powers including 

powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, 

matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be 

required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), scheme(s), 

agreement(s) and such other documents as may be required, seeking all necessary approvals to 

give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the Company and settling all such issues, 

questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions without 

being required to seek further consent or approval of the Members and that the Members shall be 

deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this Resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of 

the powers herein conferred to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary 

or any other Officer(s)/Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all such acts and take 

such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to this Resolution. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter 

referred to or contemplated in this Resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed 

in all respects.” 

 

Registered office: 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. Estate, 

B/H Old Navneet Press, Sukhramngar, 

Ahmedabad-380021 

 

 

 

Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Gala Global Products Limited 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

Prahlad Kumar Agarwal 

                                      Managing Director

 DIN: 09851691 
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IMPORTANT NOTES 

 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ 

CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable 

circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold 

AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the 

physical presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM 

shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for 

this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to 

attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-

voting. 

 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 

for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

  

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial 

Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 

issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility 

of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 

this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 

facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the 

date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

  

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the 

Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

7. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time  

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, November 26, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 

Friday, November 28, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 

for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday, November 24, 2025, may 

cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 

share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being  Monday, 

November 24, 2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 

will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
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2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you 

to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 

added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to 

login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 

and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 

website directly. 

  

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 

at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat 

mode) login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting 

facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-

Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 

free no. 1800-21-09911 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in 

physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 

i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 

or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 

change your password. 

 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 

sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 

attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 

is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 

account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains 

your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 

 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 

PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 

need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

  

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 

to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to sumit@rpasso.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their 

Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 

Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 

five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 

go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

mailto:sumit@rpasso.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
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www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Sachin Kareliya 

at evoting@nsdl.com  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

cs.gala2003@gmail.com. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 

digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 

(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 

Card) to cs.gala2003@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 

method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user 

id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE 

AS UNDER:- 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 

AGM. 

 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 

for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-

voting. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH 

VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

  

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 

Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” 

placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 

VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available 

in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note 

that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten 

the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting 

instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions 

in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 

number at cs.gala2003@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

6. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting 

may pre-register themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address 

mentioning their names, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number at 

cs.gala2003@gmail.com between November 26, 2025 (9.00 a.m. IST) and November 28, 

2025 (5.00 p.m. IST). Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves as a speaker 

will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves 

the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

 

ITEM NO. 4: To Appoint M/s Sachin Thakkar & Associates as a Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed 

company is required to annex with its Board’s Report a Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed 

form, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary (PCS). 

 

SEBI vide notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2024/218 dated 12th December 2024 has introduced 

‘SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024’ to 

establish detailed norms governing the appointment, reappointment, and removal of Secretarial 

Auditors in listed entities, effective from 31st December, 2024. The recent amendment mandates that 

the listed companies have to obtain shareholders’ approval for appointment of Secretarial Auditors. 

 

Accordingly, The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s Sachin Thakkar & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretary, having Membership number F11396 and Certificate of Practice number 15881, as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive financial years, commencing from 

the conclusion of this 15th Annual General Meeting and ending at the conclusion of the 20th Annual 

General Meeting, subject to approval of the members of the Company at the AGM. 

 

The proposed appointee has consented to act as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and 

confirmed eligibility in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for the 

approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company and their relatives are, 

in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4. 

 

ITEM NO. 5: To give approval for Related Party Transactions 

 

The Company proposes to enter into contracts, arrangements, or transactions with certain related 

parties, which may include: 

 

 Sale, purchase, or supply of goods or materials 

 Leasing of property 

 Availing or rendering of services 

 Any other transactions as specified under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 Transactions governed by Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

These transactions are necessary for the smooth conduct of the Company’s business and shall be 

undertaken in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. However, the aggregate 
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value of such transactions with related parties may exceed the prescribed thresholds under applicable 

laws. 

 

Accordingly, in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, approval of the shareholders is being sought by way of an Ordinary 

Resolution for entering into such related party transactions up to an aggregate limit of Rs 

20,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty Crores). 

 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution for approval of the members. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, except those who are directly or 

indirectly interested in the proposed transactions, are concerned or interested in the resolution. 

 

INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 15th ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING 

 

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015] 

 

Name of the Director  Mrs. Alpa Pandya  

Director Identification Number (DIN) 07013011  

Nationality  Indian 

Date of Appointment March 3, 2023  

Date of Birth 14/12/1967 

Brief resume and nature of expertise in 

specific functional areas 

Mrs. Alpa Jignesh Pandya is commerce graduate from 

Gujarat University and has experience of over 35 years 

in the Accounting Field. 

Disclosure of relationship between 

Directors inter-se 

NIL 

Qualification Graduation in commerce 

The number of Meetings of the Board 

attended during the year (2024-25) 

9(Nine)  

Names of other Listed entities in which 

he also holds the directorship and the 

membership of committees of the board 

along with listed entities from which 

the person has resigned in the past 

three years 

NIL 

 

No. of shares held 1338 Equity Shares 

 

CONTACT DETAILS 

 

Company  GALA GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press,Sukhramnagar 

Ahmedabad Gj 380021 
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Web: https://www.galaglobalhub.com/  E-mail: cs.gala2003@gmail.com Tel: +91 

75750 08383 

Registrar and 

Transfer Agent 

Kfin Technologies Private Limited 

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India - 500 032. 

Tel No.: +91–22–2265 5565   

e-Voting

Agency & VC /

OAVM

Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in 

NSDL help desk 1800-222-990 

Scrutinizer Sumit Patel 

Email: sumit@rpasso.com ; Tel No.: +918487877677 

Registered office: 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. Estate,

B/H Old Navneet Press, Sukhramngar,

Ahmedabad-380021

Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

Gala Global Products Limited 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

Sd/- 

Prahlad Kumar Agarwal 

Managing Director 

DIN: 09851691 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
mailto:shares@airanlimited.in
mailto:sumit@rpasso.com
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BOARD’S REPORT 

Dear Shareholders, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 15th Annual report of your Company along with the 

audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

 

Financial Results:               (Amount in Rs. Lacs) 

Particulars 
Standalone 

F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24 

Revenue from operations 4,178.29 7,530.07 

Other Income 11.49 107.83 

Total Income 4,189.78 7,637.90 

Operating expenditure before Finance cost, 

depreciation and amortization 
4,298.61 7,536.72 

Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and 

amortization (EBITDA) 
(108.83) 101.18 

Less: Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

367.98 

14.29 

97.04 

18.27 

Profit before tax (446.10) 27.41 

Less: Tax expense 3.28 6.43 

Profit for the year (PAT) (449.38) 20.98 

 

YEAR AT A GLANCE: 

 

Financial Performance: 

The total income of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 was Rs. 4,189.78 Lacs as against 

the total income of Rs. 7,637.90 Lacs for the previous year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

The Company has incurred Net Loss after Tax of ₹449.38 Lacs for the financial year under review, as 

against a Net Profit of ₹20.98 Lacs reported in the previous financial year. 

 

Dividend:  

With a view to conserve the resources of company for future growth, the Board of Directors do not 

recommend any Dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):  

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, there is no amount of Dividend 

remaining unclaimed/unpaid for a period of 7 (seven) years and/or unclaimed Equity Shares which are 

required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 

 

 



  Gala Global Products Limited 
 

21 | P a g e  
 

Credit Rating: 

As the company has not issued any debt instruments, there is no requirement to obtain a credit rating 

for the financial year 2024-25. 

 

Amount transferred to Reserve: 

During the year under review, this item has been disclosed under the heading "Reserves and Surplus" 

in the Balance Sheet, as detailed in Note No. 2 of the Notes forming part of the Financial Statements. 

 

Change in Nature of Business: 

During the financial year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the 

Company 

 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

 

Authorized Capital 

The authorized share capital of the company at the end of the financial year is Rs. 30,30,00,000/- 

divided into 6,06,00,000 equity shares of Rs.5 each. 

  

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital  

The present Issue, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 27,29,40,415/- divided into 

5,45,88,083 equity shares of Rs. 5 each. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:  

 

Constitution of Board: 

The Constitution of the Board of Directors and other disclosure related to the Board of Directors are 

given in the Report on Corporate Governance. 

 

Board Meeting 

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in 120 days, inter-alia, to review the quarterly 

results of the Company. Additional Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss 

and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are 

generally held at registered office of the Company. 

 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 9(Nine) times, viz 16th April 

2024, 29th May 2024, 14th August 2024, 6th September 2024, 18th September 2024, 21st October 2024, 

29th October 2024, 7th February 2025 and 14th February 2025.The details of attendance of each 

Director at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting are given in the Report on Corporate 

Governance. 

 

Independent Directors 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing 

Regulations, the Company has Three Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the 

Board of Directors, all Three Independent Directors of the Company meet all the criteria mandated by 
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Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations and they 

are Independent of Management. 

 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 15th March, 2025 to review the performance 

of Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company 

including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company 

management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably 

perform their duties.  

 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director 

are incorporated on the website of the Company at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under 

Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 and 16(1) (b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they 

meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 

2024-25. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and 

confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the 

veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for re-appointment as 

Independent Directors and are independent of the Management.  

 

No Independent Directors have tendered their resignation during the financial year 2024–25. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel 

 

In accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed Mr. Prahlad 

Agarwal as a Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. (W.e.f. 10th January, 

2023). 

 

The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Vandana Arun Baladi as Company Secretary and 

Compliance officer of the Company (w.e.f.  18th September, 2024).  

 

Performance Evaluation 

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation 

of the Board is undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with the aim to 

improve the effectiveness of the Board and the Committees. During the year under review, the Board 

has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors, as well as 

the evaluation of the working of its committees. The exercise was led by the Chairman of the NRC 

along with the Chairman of Board. 

 

The NRC has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the Performance 

Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The criteria for Evaluation of Board, 

Individual Directors and Committees is included in Report on Corporate Governance which is the part 

of this report. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:  
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Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their 

knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and that no material departures have been made from the same; 

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 

Company for that year; 

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023 on going 

concern basis. 

e) The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD: 

 

There are currently three Committees of the Board, as follows: 

 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

 

Details of all the Committees along with their composition and meetings held during the year are 

provided in the “Report on Corporate Governance”, a part of this Annual Report. 

 

Vigil Mechanism 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic 

policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of 

director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such 

mechanism have been disclosed in the Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism is 

available on the website of the Company at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high-performance 

culture. It enables the Company to attract motivate and retain manpower in competitive market, and to 

harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the Company. The 

Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Executive Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel.  

 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the 

website of the Company at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

Remuneration of Directors 

The details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the financial year 2024-25 to Executive 

Directors/Directors of the Company is provided in Form MGT-7 and Report on Corporate 

Governance which are the part of this report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report as Annexure - A. 

 

The statement containing employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees 

as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided in a separate annexure forming part 

of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to members excluding this annexure. 

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure will be for inspection. Any shareholder 

interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to Company Secretary. 

 

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES: 

 

The Company have no any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies. Hence provisions of 

Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing salient features of the financial 

statements of the subsidiary companies in Form AOC 1 is not required to be annexed to this Report. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of 

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. There were no deposits, which 

were claimed and remained unpaid by the Company as on March 31, 2025. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 

 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended on March 

31, 2025. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN: 

The Extract of Annual Return of the company as on March 31, 2025 is available on the company's 

website and can be accessed at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval. Prior 

approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions on a quarterly basis for transactions which are of 

repetitive nature and/or entered in the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length. All 

Related Party Transactions are subjected to independent review by a reputed accounting firm to 

establish compliance with the requirements of Related Party Transactions under the Companies Act, 

2013, and Listing Regulations. There was no contracts, arrangements or transactions which was 

executed not in ordinary course of business and/or at arm’s length basis. Further, there were no related 

party transactions with the Company’s Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which 

could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company. 

 

All Related Party Transactions entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary course of 

business and on an arm’s length basis. However, during the year, the Company has entered into 

Related Party Transactions. Accordingly, the disclosure of such Related Party Transactions is 

provided in Form AOC-2, which forms part of this Annual Report. The Board has adopted a Policy on 

Related Party Transactions. 

 

Members may refer to the notes to the accounts for details of related party transactions entered as per 

Indian Accounting Standard – 24. The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions Company and its 

Related Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the Rules 

there under and the SEBI LODR Regulations. 

 

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, your Company 

has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions. The Policy on Materiality of and dealing with 

Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and 

disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL (IFC) SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 

Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are 

made to minimize the impact of such risks on the operations of the Company. Necessary internal 

control systems are also put in place by the Company on various activities across the board to ensure 

that business operations are directed towards attaining the stated organizational objectives with 

optimum utilization of the resources. Apart from these internal control procedures, a well-defined and 

established system of internal audit is in operation to independently review and strengthen these 

control measures, which is carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants. The audit is based 

on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditor of the 

Company and the audit committee. The conduct of internal audit is oriented towards the review of 

internal controls and risks in its operations.  

M/s. R B Gohil & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 119360W), the statutory auditors of the 

Company has audited the financial statements included in this annual report and has issued an report 

annexed to the Audit Report of the Company on our internal control over financial reporting (as 

defined in section 143 of Companies Act, 2013). 

 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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The audit committee reviews reports submitted by the management and audit reports submitted by 

internal auditors and statutory auditor. Suggestions for improvement are considered and the audit 

committee follows up on corrective action. The audit committee also meets the statutory auditors of 

the Company to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adequacy of internal control systems and keeps 

the board of directors informed of its major- observations periodically. Based on its evaluation (as 

defined in section 177 of Companies Act 2013), our audit committee has concluded that, as of 31st 

March, 2025, our internal financial controls were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT: 

 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, 

have occurred between the ends of financial year of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2025 to the date of 

this Report. 

 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE: 

 

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th 

December, 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints 

Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace of any women 

employee. 

 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees 

during the year under review. The Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual 

Harassment of Women at workplace and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. 

During the year Company has not received any complaint of harassment. Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual Harassment has been available on the website of the Company at 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

  

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not require to constitute 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“the CSR Committee”). 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year 

under review, the Management reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted 

by the Company covering the business operations of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

A. Conservation of energy – 

i.) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Company ensures that the operations are 

conducted in the manner whereby optimum utilization and maximum possible savings of energy 

is achieved. 

ii.) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: No alternate source 

has been adopted. 

iii.) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: No specific investment has been 

made in reduction in energy consumption. 

B. Technology absorption – 

i.) The effort made towards technology absorption: Not Applicable. 

ii.) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 

import substitution: Not Applicable 

iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year) - 

a. The details of technology imported: Nil. 

b. The year of import: Not Applicable. 

c. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable. 

d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: 

Not Applicable. 

iv.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Expenditure: 

i.) Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil 

ii.) Details of Foreign Exchange Expenditure: Nil 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. As 

stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate of the Practicing Company Secretary with 

regards to compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Board’s Report 

as Annexure – B. 

  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Schedule 

V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a 

separate section forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 

The Company has appointed M/s. R. B. Gohil & Co. (FRN: 119360W), Chartered Accountants, 

Jamnagar, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the 

resignation of H K Shah & Co. (FRN: 109583W)  (W.e.f. 14th November, 2024) 
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Further, M/s. R. B. Gohil & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 119360W), are 

proposed to be appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five (5) consecutive 

years at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Annual 

Report. The Auditors have given Qualified Opinion in their Report.  Replies to the observations by 

the Statutory Auditors in their Report are given by way of an addendum to this Report as Annexure-C. 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROL: 

 

The Company has appointed M/s. Nirali Rajani & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 

FNA287495) as its Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-25. They will be responsible for 

evaluating and improving the Company's internal audit, controls, systems, and processes. The 

Company does not have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of Business. 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUD: 

 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORD: 

 

Company is required to maintain cost records and required to be audited u/s 148 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. However, cost records have not been maintained as prescribed, nor the same has been 

audited as prescribed.  

 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 

 

The Company has appointed M/s. Deepti & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the 

secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, as required under Section 204 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024-

25 is annexed to this report as an Annexure – D. 

 

The said report contains certain observation or qualifications which are as under: 

 

SR 

No. 

Observation  Board’s Reply 

1 There was a Delay in Filing MGT-15 for the AGM held 

on September 30, 2025 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

2 There was a Delay in Filing AOC-4 XBRL for the AGM 

held on September 30, 2025 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

3 There was a Delay in Filing MGT-7 for the AGM held on 

September 30, 2025 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

4 There was a delay in filing Form MGT-14 for the 

approval of the Board Report and Financial Results for 

FY 2023-24, approved in the Board Meeting. 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 
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5 

 

There was a Delay in Filing DIR-12 for the Appointment 

of Company Secretary. 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

6 There was a delay in filing Form MGT-14 for the 

appointment of the Secretarial Auditor, as approved in the 

Board Meeting. 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

7 Non-Filing of SH-7  Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

8 No Action Taken for Right Issue Approved in Board 

Meeting held on October 21, 2024. 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

9 The notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) was 

not issued at least 21 clear days prior to the date of the 

meeting 

Due to Non- receipt of Financials  

from Auditor 

10. Failure to maintain cost records and to carry out the 

required cost audits. 

Due to inadvertent delays in the 

administrative process 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD 1 AND 

SECRETARIAL STANDARD 2: 

 

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of 

Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by your Company except 

as mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report. 

 

GENERAL DISCLOSURE: 

 

Your Directors state that the Company has made disclosures in this report for the items prescribed in 

section 134 (3) of the Act and Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other applicable 

provisions of the act and listing regulations, to the extent the transactions took place on those items 

during the year. Your directors further state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the 

following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review or they are 

not applicable to the Company; 

 

(i) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act; 

(ii) Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 

(iii) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme 

save and ESOS; 

(iv) There is no revision in the Board Report or Financial Statement; 

(v) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 

impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future; 

 

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

Your director’s wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made 

by the employees at all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment during the year 

under review. 
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The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your Company has been 

receiving from its suppliers, distributors, retailers, business partners and others associated with it as its 

trading partners. Your Company looks upon them as partners in its progress and has shared with them 

the rewards of growth. It will be your Company’s Endeavour to build and nurture strong links with 

the trade based on mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation with each other, consistent with 

consumer interests. 

 

Your directors also take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, 

Government and Regulatory Authorities and Stock Exchanges, for their continued support. 

 

 

Registered office: 

B-1, laxmi com. Co.op. Estate, b/h 

old navneet press, sukhramnagar 

Ahmedabad Gujarat  380021  

 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

GALA GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

 

   Sd/-                                                           Sd/- 

 Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

  Prahlad Agarwal 

Managing Director               

                 DIN: 09851691 

Alpa Pandya 

Director 

 DIN: 07013011 
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Annexure – A 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required  

Under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under. 

 

A. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the 

financial year and the Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial 

Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial 

year: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation Nature of 

Payment 

Amount 

Paid 

 

Ratio against 

median 

employee’s 

remuneration 

Percentage 

Increase 

 

1. Mrs. Alpa 

Jignesh 

Pandya 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 3rd  

March, 

2023) 

Executive 

Director 

Director 

Remuneration 

 

3,66,405/- 17.04 

 

2.71% 

 

2. Vishal Gala 

 

Executive 

Director 

Director 

Remuneration 

18,00,000/- 

 

83.71 

 

(25)% 

3 Mr. Prahlad 

Kumar 

Agarwal 

(Appointed 

w.e.f.10th  

January, 

2023) 

 

Managing 

Director and 

CFO 

Director 

Remuneration 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

4. Mr. Umang 

Selani 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 3rd  

September, 

2022) 

Non-Executive 

Independent 

Director 

 

Sitting Fees 64,000/- 50.00 

 

6.67% 
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5. Mr. Vipul 

Maru 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 3rd  

September, 

2022) 

Non‐Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Sitting Fees 

 

- - 

 

- 

 

6. Mr. Dhruv 

Modi 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 2nd  

October, 

2023) 

Non‐Executive 

Independent 

Director 

Sitting Fees 

 

64,000/- 50.00 

 

60.00% 

 

12 Mrs. Vandna  

Arun Bald 

(Resigned 

w.e.f  17th 

September, 

2024) 

Company 

Secretary 

Salary 

 

93,100/- 72.73 0.00% 

 

b) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

The median remuneration of the employees in current financial year has decreased by 53 % over 

the previous financial year. 

 

c) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:  

23 Employees as on March 31, 2025. 

 

d) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

The Average 40% decrease was made in salary of employees whereas remuneration of Executive 

Directors was decreased by 50%. Further, there were no exceptional circumstances in which the 

salary executive Directors was increased. It was as per the approval of the shareholders of the 

Company.  
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Annexure - B 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance ensures fairness, transparency and integrity of the management. Corporate 

Governance is a way of life, rather than a mere legal compulsion. It further inspires and strengthens 

investor’s confidence and commitment to the Company. Any good Corporate Governance provides an 

appropriate framework for the Board, its committees and senior management, to carry out the 

objectives that are in the interest of the Company and the stakeholders. 

 

The Company maintains the highest levels of transparency, accountability and good management 

practices through the adoption and monitoring of corporate strategies, goals and procedures to comply 

with its legal and ethical responsibilities. 

 

We believe that sound Corporate Governance is critical to enhancing and retaining investor trust. 

Accordingly, we always seek to ensure that we attain our performance goals with integrity. Our Board 

exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the term. 

 

In compliance with the disclosure requirements as mentioned in Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the details are set out in this report. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The “Board”, being the trustee of the Company, responsible for the establishment of cultural, ethical 

and accountable growth of the Company, is constituted with a high level of integrated, knowledgeable 

and committed professionals. The Board provides strategic guidance and independent views to the 

Company’s senior management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities. 

 

Constitution of Board 

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive 

Directors, including independent Directors, which plays a crucial role in Board processes and 

provides independent judgment on issues of strategy and performance. As on 31st March, 2025, 

Board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors out of which 3 (Three) Directors are Executive Directors, and 

remaining 3 (Four) are Non-Executive Independent Directors.  

 

Further, Company has appointed Mr. Yagnik Movaliya as a Non-Executive Independent Director to 

the Board with effect from 16th April, 2025. 

 

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors 

is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have confirmed that they 

meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended 

from time to time and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The present strength of the Board 

reflects judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which enables the Board 

to provide effective leadership to the Company. 
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None of the Directors is a director in more than ten Public Limited Companies. Further, none of the 

Directors on the Company’s Board is a member of more than ten Committees and Chairman of more 

than five Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee) across all the companies in which he/she is a director. All the Directors have made 

necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in other companies and do not 

hold the office of Director in more than ten public companies as on 31st March, 2023. None of the 

Director of the Company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any Listed Company and is holding 

position of Independent Director in more than three Listed Company and none of the Director of the 

Company is holding position as Independent Director in more than seven Listed Company. None of 

the Directors is Director in more than seven listed companies. 

 

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

 

As at 31st March, 2025, the Board comprised following Directors; 

 

Name 

of 

Directo

r 

Category 

Cum 

Designatio

n 

Date of 

Appointmen

t in 

present role 

Directorshi

p in 

other 

Listed 

Companies 

excluding 

our 

Company 

Membership of 

Committee in other 

company 

No. of 

Share

s held 

as on 

Marc

h 31, 

2023 

Inter-se 

Relation 

between 

Director

s 
in which 

Director 

is 

Member

s 

in which 

Director 

is 

Chairma

n 

Vishal 

Gala 

 

Executive 

Director 

14th 

December, 

2010 

0 0 0 79000 

Equity 

Shares 

No 

Relation 

Alpa 

Pandya 

Executive 

Director 

3rd  

March,  

2023 

0 0 0 1338 

Equity 

Shares 

No 

Relation 

Prahlad 

Agarwal 

Executive 

Director 

& 

 Managing 

Director 

10th  

January, 

2023 

0 0 0 - No 

Relation 

Dhruv 

Modi 

 

Non-

Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

10th 

February, 

2023 

0 0 0 - No 

Relation 

Umang 

Selani 

Non‐ 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

3rd 

September, 

2022 

0 0 0 - No 

Relation 
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Vipul 

Maru 

Non‐ 

Executive 

Independent 

Director 

3rd 

September, 

2022 

0 0 0 - No 

Relation 

 

^ Committee includes Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievances Committee across all Public 

Companies excluding our Company. 

~ excluding Section 8 Company, Struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs. 

 

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in 

Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

Board Meeting 

Regular meetings of the Board are held to review the quarterly results of the Company. Additional 

Board meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business 

policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at registered office of 

the Company. 

 

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 9 (Nine) times, viz  

16-04-2024, 29-05-2024, 14-08-2024, 06-09-2024, 18-09-2024, 21-10-2024, 29-10-2024, 07-02-

2025, 14-02-2025. 

 

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are 

given below; 

  

Name of Director Number of Board 

Meetings held during 

their tenure in the F.Y. 

2024-25 

Number of Board 

Meetings attended 

during F.Y. 2024-25 

Whether attended 

last AGM held on 

30.09.2024 

Mr. Vishal M. Gala 9 9 Yes 

Mrs. Alpa Jignesh 

Pandya 
9 9 Yes 

Prahlad Agarwal 9 9 Yes 

Mr. Dhruv Modi 9 9 Yes 

Mr. Umang Selani 9 9 Yes 

Mr. Vipul Maru 9 9 No 

 

During the year, the Board of Directors accepted all recommendations of the Committees of the 

Board, which were statutory in nature and required to be recommended by the Committee and 

approved by the Board of Directors. Hence, the Company is in compliance of condition of clause 

10(j) of schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.  

 



  Gala Global Products Limited 
 

36 | P a g e  
 

Independent Directors: 

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing 

Regulations, the Company has three Non-Promoter Non-Executive Independent Directors as on report 

date. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all three Independent Directors of the Company meet 

all the criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and 

Listing Regulations and they are Independent of Management.  

 

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 15th March, 2025 to review the performance 

of Non-Independent Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company 

including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between Company 

management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably 

perform their duties.  

 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director 

are incorporated on the website of the Company at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under 

Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 and 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet 

criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial year 2024-

2025. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and 

confirmation as submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the 

veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for re-appointment as 

Independent Directors and are independent of the Management. 

 

No Independent Directors have resigned during the year 

 

Detailed reasons for the resignation of the Independent Directors who resigned before the 

expiry of his/her tenure: NA 

 

Code of conduct for the Board of Directors and senior management personnel: 

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the 

Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The compliance of the said 

code has been affirmed by them annually. The Code of Conduct also includes the duties of 

Independent Directors. A copy of the Code has been put up on the Company’s website and same may 

be accessed at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

A declaration of the Company for compliance with code of conduct is attached with this report. 

 

Familiarization Programmer for Board Members: 

The Company has formulated a policy to familiarize the Independent Directors with the Company, 

their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company 

operates, business model of the Company, etc., through various programmes. The details of such 

familiarization programmes are disclosed on the website of the Company and the web link for the 

same is https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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Skills/expertise/ competencies of Board of Directors: 

The Board of the Company comprises eminent personalities and leaders in their respective fields. 

These members bring in the required skills, competence and expertise to the Board. These Directors 

are nominated based on well-defined selection criteria. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

(‘NRC’) considers, inter alia, key skills, qualifications, expertise and competencies, whilst 

recommending to the Board the candidature for appointment of Director. The Board of Directors 

have, based on the recommendations of the NRC, identified the following core key 

skills/expertise/competencies of Directors as required in the context of business of the Company for 

its effective functioning which are currently possessed by the Board Members of the Company and 

mapped against each of the Directors: 

 

Name of 

Director 

 

 

 

 

 

Safety and 

Corporate 

Social 

Responsibilit

y 

General 

Manageme

nt and 

Leadership 

Experience 

Human 

Resource  

and 

Communicatio

n 

Corporat

e 

Strategy 

and 

Strategic 

Planning 

Finance, 

Risk 

Managemen

t, 

Regulatory 

and 

Governance 

Science 

and 

Technolog

y 

including 

IT 

Vishal 

Mulchandbh

ai Gala 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 

December 

14, 2010) 

          - 

Alpa Gala 

(Appointmen

t w.e.f.  

March 3, 

2023) 

          - 

Prahlad 

Kumar 

Agarwal 

(Appointed 

w.e.f.  

January 10, 

2023) 

          - 

Dhruv Modi 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 

February 10, 

2023) 

    - - -   

Umang 

Selani 

(Appointed 

w.e.f  

    - - -   
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September 3, 

2022) 

Vipul Maru 

(Appointed 

w.e.f  

September 3, 

2022) 

    - - -   

Yagnik 

Kishorbhai 

Movaliya 

(Appointed 

w.e.f.  

April 16,  

2025 

          - 

 

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has devised a Code of Conduct of Insider Trading Regulations which is applicable to 

all the Designated Persons of the company who are expected to have access to have access to the 

unpublished price sensitive information relating to the company and is available on the website of the 

company i.e. https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. The said code lays down guidelines which advise 

them. 

 

COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. 

Presently the Company has Three (3) committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee. All the decisions 

pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of 

reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and 

composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the financial year and 

the related attendance, are provided in detailed hereunder. 

 

There were no instances during the financial year 2024-25, wherein the Board had not accepted 

recommendations made by any committee of the Board. 

 

A. Audit Committee 

The Company has formed audit committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling 

its overall responsibilities of monitoring financial reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s 

established systems and processes for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the 

Company’s statutory and internal audit activities. 

 

Role of Committee:  

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 

Company;  

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors;  

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  

a) Matters required being included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 

the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.  

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.  

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management.  

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.  

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.  

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions.  

g) Qualifications in the draft audit report.  

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval;  

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report 

submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights 

issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;  

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process;  

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;  

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;  

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems;  

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 

audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure 

coverage and frequency of internal audit;  

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 

and reporting the matter to the board;  

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

18. Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such 

manner as may be prescribed. 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole time Finance Director or any other person 

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
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20. Reviewing the Management letters/ letters of Internal Control weaknesses issued by Statutory 

Auditor; 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; 

22. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in 

the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is 

lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into 

force of the provision and 

23. The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the 

scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before 

their submission to the Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and 

statutory auditors and the management of the Company. 

  

Review of Information by the Committee: 

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted 

by management; 

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;  

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee and statement of deviations: 

(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

6. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 

process; 

7. Examination of the financial statement and auditors’ report thereon; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investment; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 

13. Any other matters as prescribed by law from time to time. 

 

Powers of Committee: 

The Committee- 

1. May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including 

observations of auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to board; 

2. May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the 

Company; 

3. To investigate into any matter in relation to above items or referred to it by Board; 

4. To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information 

contained in the records of the Company; 

5. To seek information from any employee; 

6. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; 

7. Any other power as may be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law. 
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Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

Audit Committee meeting is generally held one in quarter for the purpose of recommending the 

quarterly / half yearly / yearly financial result and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one 

hundred and twenty days. Additional meeting is held for the purpose of reviewing the specific item 

included in terms of reference of the Committee. During the year under review, Audit Committee met 

5 (Five) times on 29th May, 2024; 14th August, 2024, 29th  October, 2024; 7th February, 2025, 14th 

February 2025.    

 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its 

members are given below: 

 

Name of Members 

 

Category Designation 

in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the 

financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to 

attend 

Attended 

Umang Sanjaybhai 

Selani  

(Appointed 30th 

September, 2022) 

 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 5 5 5 

Vipul Laxmichand 

Maru  

(Appointed w.e.f 30th 

September, 2022) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 5 5 5 

Dhruv Modi 

(Appointed 18th July, 

2023) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 5 5 5 

 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee. The Constitution of the 

Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the 

Committee wherever requires. Chief Financial Officer of the Company is a regular invitee at the 

Meeting.  

 

Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of wherever/whenever 

given. 

 

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration committee in line with the provisions 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations.  
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Terms of reference: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 

directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 

directors;  

3. Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors 

their appointment and removal. 

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

6. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

Explanation: Senior Management means personnel who are members of the core management 

team excluding BOD comprising all members of management one level below the executive 

directors, including functional heads. 

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

8. Other terms of reference as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 

Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. 

 

Composition of Committee, Meeting and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is generally held at least once in a year. 

Additional meetings are held for the purpose of recommending appointment/re-appointment of 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. During the year under review, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3(Three) time viz, 16th April, 2024, 14th August 2024, 

18th September, 2024. 

 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its 

members are given below: 

 

Name of Members Category Designation 

in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the financial 

year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to 

attend 

Attended 

Umang Sanjaybhai 

Selani (Appointed 

30th September, 

2022) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Chairman 3 3 3 

Vipul Laxmichand 

Maru (Appointed 

w.e.f 30th 

September, 2022) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 3 3 3 

Dhruv Modi 

(Appointed 18th 

July, 2023) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

Member 3 3 3 
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Board and Director Evaluation and criteria for evaluation 

 

In terms of the requirement of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation 

of the Board is undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with the aim to 

improve the effectiveness of the Board and the Committees. During the year under review, the Board 

has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of the Directors, as well as 

the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The exercise was led by the Chairman of the NRC 

along with the Chairman of Board. 

 

The NRC has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the Performance 

Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors. The criteria for Evaluation of Board, 

Individual Directors and Committees include, inter alia, the following: 

 

Board Evaluation Evaluation of Individual 

Directors 

Committee Evaluation 

 Board Structure - 

qualifications, experience and 

competencies 

 Board Diversity 

 Meetings – regularity, 

frequency, agenda, discussion 

and recording of minutes 

 Functions – strategy, 

governance, compliances, 

evaluation of risks, 

stakeholder value and 

responsibility, conflict of 

interest 

 Independence of management 

from the Board, access of 

Board and management to 

each other 

 Professional qualifications 

and experience  

 Knowledge, skills and 

competencies  

 Fulfillment of functions, 

ability to function as a team  

 Attendance  

 Commitment, contribution, 

integrity and independence 

 In addition to the above, the 

Chairman of the Board 

Meetings is also evaluated on 

key aspects of his role, 

including effectiveness of 

leadership and ability to steer 

Meetings, impartiality and 

ability to keep shareholders’ 

interests in mind 

 Mandate and composition  

 Effectiveness of the 

Committee  

 Structure of the 

Committee  

 Meetings – regularity, 

frequency, agenda, 

discussion and dissent, 

recording of minutes  

 Independence of the 

Committee from the 

Board and contribution to 

decisions of the Board 

  

Remuneration of Directors: 

 

The Company has not entered into any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non‐Executive 

Directors of the Company. 

 

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non‐executive directors are provided under the 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company which is hosted on the website of the 

Company viz; https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration to Executive Directors of the 

Company, details of which are as under; 

  

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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Sr. 

No. 

Name of Directors Designation Component of 

payment 

Remuneration 

Paid (in Rs.) 

1 Vishal Mulchandbhai Gala Executive Director Remuneration 18,00,000 

 

 

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based 

on the performance of the Company in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

within the limit approved by the Board or Members. 

 

Apart from sitting fees, Non‐Executive Directors do not receive any other consideration except in 

their professional capacity. Further, the Non‐Executive Directors are paid sitting fees within the limits 

as stipulated under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013, for attending Board/Committee Meetings. 

Sitting Fees paid to Directors does not require the approval of Shareholders and Central Government. 

Details of sitting fees paid to the Non‐Executive Directors are given below: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Directors Sitting Fees Paid (in Rs.) 

1. Mr. Umang Selani 64,000 

2. Mr. Dhruv Modi 64,000 

  

The Company has not entered into / paid any service contracts, notice period, severance fees. Further, 

the Company has not granted any stock options to its directors. 

 

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board based on 

below criteria:  

a. Director’s preparedness prior to the meeting; 

b. Director’s willingness to devote time and effort to understand the Company and its business and a 

readiness to participate in events outside the meeting room, such as site visits; 

c. Director’s ability to remain focused at a governance level in Board/ Committee meetings; 

d. Quality of Director’s contributions at Board/Committee meetings; 

e. Proactive attitude of Directors in development of strategy and risk management of the Company; 

f. Director’s understanding about governance, regulatory, financial, fiduciary and ethical 

requirements of the Board /Committee; 

g. Director’s willingness to refresh his/ her knowledge and skills and up to date with the latest 

developments in areas such as corporate governance framework, financial reporting and the 

industry and market conditions; 

h. Convincing power of the director in presenting his/her views before board; 

i. Maintaining high standard of ethics and integrity. 

Further, the evaluation of the Chairman and the Executive Director was carried out by the 

Independent Directors. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results. 

 

C. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

 

Terms of Reference: 
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The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee (“SRC”) looks into various aspects of interest of 

shareholders. The Committee ensures cordial investor relations, oversees the mechanism for redressal 

of investors’ grievances and specifically looks into various aspects of interest of shareholders. The 

Committee specifically looks into redressing shareholders’/investors’ complaints/ grievances 

pertaining to share transfers/transmission, non-receipts of annual reports, non-receipt of declared 

dividend and other allied complaints. The Committee oversees performance of the Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agents of the Company relating to investor services and recommends measures for 

improvement. The terms of reference of the SRC includes: 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum 

of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory 

notices by the shareholders of the company. 

 

Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance of each Member at Meetings: 

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee met 4 (four) times 

viz on  29th May 2024, 14th August 2024, 30th October, 2024, 20th January 2025. 

 

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its 

members are given below: 

 

Name of 

Members 

Category Designation 

in 

Committee 

Number of meetings during the 

financial year 2024-25 

Held Eligible to 

attend 

Attended 

Umang Sanjaybhai 

Selani 

(Appointed W.e.f. 

September 30, 

2022) 

 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

 

Chairperson 4 4 4 

Vipul Laxmichand 

Maru 

(Appointed W.e.f. 

September 30, 

2022) 

Non-Executive - 

Independent 

Director 

 

Member 4 4 4 

Vishal 

Mulchandbhai 

Gala(Appointed 

W.e.f. September 

30, 2022) 

Executive Director 

 

Member 4 4 4 
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Name and Designation of Compliance Officer 

Mrs. Vandana Arun Baldi, Company Secretary of the Company is acting as the Compliance Officer. 

(W.e.f. September, 18, 2024) 

 

Ms. Chhayaben Chandulal Mulani has resigned as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 

Company on July 01, 2024. 

 

Complaint 

Number of complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2024 Nil 

Number of complaints received from the Investors from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 

2025 

Nil 

Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of the Investors from April 1, 2024 

to March 31, 2025 

Nil 

Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2025 Nil 

 

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

 

The company is not required to formulate Corporate Social Responsibility Committee pursuant to 

Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

E. Risk Management Committee 

  

The company is not required to formulate Risk Management Committee pursuant to Regulation 21(2) 

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as the company is not 

in the top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of market capitalization as at the end of the 

immediate preceding financial year or high value debt listed entity. 

 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

  

Particulars of senior management including the changes therein since the close of the previous 

financial year are as under. 

 

Sr. No.  Particulars Designation 

1. Mrs. Vandana Arun Baldi  Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

2.  Mr. Prahlad Kumar Agarwal  Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

 

There has been Two change in the senior management since the close of the previous financial year. 

 

 Ms. Chhayaben Chandulal Mulani, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company      

has resigned as on July 1, 2024. 

 Mrs. Vandana Arun Baldi, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company 

appointed W.e.f  September 18, 2024 
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

Annual General Meetings 

Financial 

Year 

Date, Day and 

Time 
Location of Meeting 

Time No. of 

Special 

Resolutions 

passed 

2023-24 Monday, 

September 30, 

2024 

Through two-way VC / OAVM ‐ B‐1 

Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, B/H Old 

Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad‐380021 

4:00 

P.M. 

0 

2022-23  Saturday, 

September 30, 

2023 

Through two-way VC / OAVM ‐ B‐1 

Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, B/H Old 

Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad‐380021  

1:00 

P.M.  

0  

2021-22 Friday, September 

30, 2022 

Through two-way VC / OAVM ‐ B‐1 

Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, B/H Old 

Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad‐380021 

12:30 

PM 

 

4 

 

Passing of Special Resolution through Postal Ballot: 

During the year no Special Resolution has been passed through Postal Ballot. 

 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

a. Financial Results 

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are published in widely circulating national and local 

dailies such as “ The Free Press Gujarat” i.e.in English and “Lokmitra” in Gujarati language and are 

displayed on the website of the Company www.galaglobalhub.com. 

 

b. Website  

The Company's website https://www.galaglobalhub.com/ Contains a separate dedicated section 

namely “Investors” where shareholders information is available. The Annual Report of the Company 

is also available on the website of the Company https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any presentations to institutional investors 

or to the analysts. Further, the result of the Company has not been displayed any official news 

releases. 

 

General Shareholders Information 

 

Date, Time and Venue of 15th Annual General Meeting 

Day and Date: Saturday, 29th November, 2025 

Time: 02.00 P.M. 

http://www.galaglobalhub.com./
https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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Venue: Through VC / AOVM - B-1 Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press, 

Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad-380021 

 

Financial Year 

12 months period starting from April 1 and ends on March 31 of subsequent year. This being financial 

year 2024-25 was started on April 1, 2024 and ended on March 31, 2025.  

 

Financial Calendar 

(Tentative and subject to change for the financial year 2024-25) 

 

Quarter ending Release of Results 

June 30, 2024 August 14, 2024 

September 30, 2024 October 29, 2024 

December 31, 2024 February 14, 2025 

March 31, 2025 May 30, 2025 

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 

31, 2025 

November  29, 2025 

 

Book closure date 

 

Saturday 24th November, 2025 to Saturday 28th November, 2025 (both days inclusive). 

 

Listing on Stock Exchanges 

Bombay Stock Exchange 

P. J. Towers, 

Dalal Street, Fort, 

Mumbai – 400 001 

 

Listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 has been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange. 

 

Stock Code/Symbol 

Bombay Stock Exchange (Scrip Code – 539228) 

 

Market Price Data 

The Monthly high/low and the volume of the Company’s shares traded on stock exchanges and the 

Monthly high/ low of the said exchanges are as follows: 
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Month 

Gala Global 

Products Limited (Price in `) 

BSE Sensex BSE 

High Price Low Price High Price Low Price Volumes 

April, 2024 4.28 2.80 75,124.28  71,816.46 84,70,439 

May, 2024 4.43 3.40 76,009.68  71,866.01 50,10,487 

June, 2024 4.14 3.41 79,671.58  70,234.43 35,74,143 

July, 2024 3.90 3.33 81,908.43  78,971.79 41,37,292 

August, 2024 3.58 3.01 82,637.03  78,295.86 30,11,151 

September, 2024 3.55 3.00 85,978.25  80,895.05 31,62,407 

October, 2024 3.68 2.80 84,648.40  79,137.98 46,44,359 

November, 2024 3.80 3.01 80,569.73  76,802.73 23,20,235 

December, 2024 3.65 2.82 82,317.74  77,560.79 24,73,445 

January, 2025 4.25 2.86 80,072.99  75,267.59    71,48,613 

February, 2025 4.22 3.06 78,735.41  73,141.27 41,34,414 

March, 2025 3.79 2.82 78,741.69  72,633.54 53,38,434 

 

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices viz. BSE Sensex: 

 

 

 

Registrar and Transfer Agents 

Kfin Technologies Private Limited 

Address: Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad -500 032;  

Tel: +91 6716 2222; Email: einward.ris@karvy.com; Web: https://www.kfintech.com/ 
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Share Transfer System 

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI LODR, as amended, securities can be transferred only in 

dematerialization form w.e.f. 1st April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 

transposition of securities. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider 

converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Transfer of shares in electronic form is effected by 

the depositories with no involvement of the Company. 

 

Distribution of shareholding (As on March 31, 2025) 

 

On the basis of number of shares held: 

No. of Shares Shareholders Amount of Shares held 

Number % of Total Amount % of Total 

1 5000 36,065 95.71 9,12,17,230 33.42 

5001 10000 847 2.25 3,14,68,665 11.53 

10001 20000 418 1.11 2,95,46,610 10.83 

20001 30000 119 0.32 1,47,02,045 5.39 

30001 40000 52 0.14 92,60,150 3.39 

40001 50000 44 0.12 1,01,38,415 3.72 

50001 100000 77 0.20 2,67,13,265 9.78 

100001 Above 57 0.15 5,98,94,035 21.94 

Total 37,679 100.00 27,29,40,415 100.00 

 

On the basis of Category of Shareholders: 

No. of Shares Number of Shares held 

Number % of Total 

Clearing Members 2 0.01 

HUF 17,75,493 3.25 

Bodies Corporate 19,32,534 3.54 

Non Resident Indians 5,20,982 0.95 

Non Resident Indians Non Repatriation 12,25,097 2.24 

Promoters Individuals 79,220 0.15 

Resident Individuals 4,90,54,755 89.86 

Total 5,45,88,083 100 

 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity (as on March 31, 2025) 

Mode No. of Shares Percentage 

NSDL 1,50,07,041 27.49 

CDSL 3,89,45,626 71.35 

Physical  6,35,416  1.16 

Total 5,45,88,083 100.00 
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The shares are traded on Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited. For those shareholders who hold 

the shares in physical form may contact Depository Participant/RTA. 

 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion date and likely 

impact on equity 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments till date. 

Hence, there are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments. 

 

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:  

During the year under review, the Company was not exposed to any significant Foreign Exchange 

Risk or commodity price risks, hence there was no need to enter into any hedging arrangements. 

 

Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 

lying at the beginning of the year 

NIL 

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from 

suspense account during the year 

NIL 

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account 

during the year 

NIL 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 

lying at the end of the year 

NIL 

 

Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities: 

 

No agreements are executed which are covered under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of Schedule 

III of Listing Regulations and hence disclosure is not required. 

 

Plant Locations 

B‐8 Laxmi Co‐op. Estate, Old Navneet Press Compound, Ajod Dairy Road, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad ‐380021  Gujarat 

E‐Mail: inf.galaglobal@gmail.com; Phone: +91 079‐22772921 

 

Address of Correspondence 

i) Gala Global Products Limited 

Vishal gala 

Director 

Address: B-1 Laxmi Co-op. Estate, Old Navneet Press Compound, Ajod Dairy Road, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad -380021 Gujarat 

E-Mail: inf.galaglobal@gmail.com; Phone: +91 079-22772921 
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For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change of address of members and other queries: 

Kfin Technologies Private Limited 

Address: Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 

Andhra Pradesh, Hyderabad -500 032; 

Tel: +91 6716 2222; Email: einward.ris@karvy.com; Web: https://www.kfintech.com/ 

 

CREDIT RATINGS AND ANY REVISION THERETO: 

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or 

any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. The Company has not obtained any credit rating during the year. 

 

DISCLOSURE: 

 

Subsidiary Companies 

The Company has no any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies. Hence, details relating to 

Subsidiary/JointVentures/Associate Companies are not provided for. 

 

Material Related Party Transaction 

During the year 2024-25, there was no materially significant related party transaction that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Attention of members is drawn to the 

disclosure of transactions with the related parties set out in Notes to Accounts, forming part of the 

Annual Report. 

 

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the 

Company’s website. The policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

Compliances 

Except in respect of matters specified in Annexure E, there were neither any instances of non-

compliance by the Company nor were there any penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by 

the Stock Exchange/(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, 

during the reporting period. 

 

Risk Management 

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year 

under review, the Management reviewed the risk management and minimization procedure adopted 

by the Company covering the business operations of the Company. 

 

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc. 

There are no public issues, rights issues, preferential issues made during the period under review. 

 

MD/ CFO Certification 

In terms of Regulation 17(8) read with part B of Schedule II of SEBI LODR Regulations, the 

Certification by MD and CFO has been obtained and the said certification has been placed before the 

Board Members of the Company for perusal. 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
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Accounting treatment 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards 

referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting policies which are 

consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

Whistle Blower 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic 

policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of 

director(s)/Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such 

mechanism has been disclosed in the Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on Vigil Mechanism is 

available on the website of the Company at https://www.galaglobalhub.com/. 

 

Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory 

requirements 

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements as specified under 

Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR. The Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements as 

prescribed under Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI LODR. 

 

The Board:  

Maintenance of Office to the Non-Executive Chairperson at the Company’s expense: This is not 

applicable as the Chairperson of the Company is an Executive Director. 

 

Shareholders Rights: The quarterly and half-yearly financial results are published in widely 

circulated dailies and also displayed on Company’s website viz. www.galaglobalhub.com. Hence, 

these are not individually sent to the Shareholders. 

 

Modified Opinion(s) in audit report: There is modified opinion given in the Auditors’ Report on 

Financial Statements. 

 

Reporting of Internal Auditor: The internal auditor directly reports to audit committee. 

 

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company 

 

The total fees of ₹1,25,000 (Rupees One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand only) were paid by the 

Company during the financial year 2024-25 to the statutory auditor. 

 

Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual 

harassment at workplace. The details relating to the number of complaints received and disposed of 

during the financial year 2024-25 are prescribed under Board’s Report forming part of this Annual 

Report. 

 

https://www.galaglobalhub.com/
http://www.galaglobalhub.com./
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Secretarial Compliance Report 

 

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with Regulation 

24(A) of the Listing Regulations, directed listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial compliance 

audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI Regulations and 

circulars/guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial Compliance report is in addition to the 

Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing Company Secretaries under Form MR – 3 and is required to be 

submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year.  

 

Accordingly, the Company has engaged the services of M/s Deepti & Associates (CP No. 17546), 

Practicing Company Secretary and Secretarial Auditor of the Company for providing this 

certification. The said compliance report has been submitted by the Company to Exchange. 

  

Compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars Regulation Number 

Compliance 

status 

(Yes/No/NA) 

1 Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of 

specified criteria of ‘independence’ and/or ‘eligibility’ 

16(1)(b) & 25(6) Yes 

2 Board composition 17(1), 17(1A) & 

17(1B) 

Yes 

3 Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes 

4 Quorum of Board meeting 17(2A) Yes 

5 Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes 

6 Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Not 

Applicable 

7 Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes 

8 Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes 

9 Minimum Information 17(7) Yes 

10 Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes 

11 Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes 

12 Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes 

13 Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes 

14 Maximum number of directorship 17A Yes 

15 Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes 

16 Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes 

17 Composition of nomination & remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes 

18 Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

meeting 

19(2A) Yes 
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Sr. 

No. 
Particulars Regulation Number 

Compliance 

status 

(Yes/No/NA) 

19 Meeting of nomination & remuneration committee 19(3A) Yes 

20 Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(1), 20(2) and 

20(2A) 

Yes 

21 Meeting of stakeholder relationship committee 20(3A) Yes 

22 Composition and role of risk management committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) NA 

23 Meeting of Risk Management Committee 22 NA 

24 Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes 

25 Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(1A),(5),(6),(7) 

& (8) 

Yes 

26 Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all 

related party transactions 

23(2), (3) Yes 

27 Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) Yes 

28 Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated 

basis 

23(9) Yes 

29 Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material 

Subsidiary 

24(1) NA 

30 Other Corporate Governance requirements with respect 

to subsidiary of listed entity 

24(2),(3),(4),(5) & 

(6) 

NA 

31 Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24(A) Yes 

32 Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) NA 

33 Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes 

34 Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes 

35 Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes 

36 Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yes 

37 D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) NA 

38 Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes 

39 Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from 

members of Board of Directors and Senior management 

personnel 

26(3) Yes 

40 Policy with respect to Obligations of directors and 

senior management 

26(2) & 26(5) Yes 
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Registered office: 

B-1, laxmi com. Co.op. Estate, 

b/h old navneet 

press,sukhramnagar ahmedabad 

gj 380021  

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

GALA GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

 

            Sd/-                                                         Sd/- 

Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

     Prahlad Agarwal 

   Managing Director               

                  DIN: 09851691 

Alpa Pandya 

Director 

DIN: 07013011 
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MD AND CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

I, Mr. Prahlad Agarwal, Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify that 

 

1. We have reviewed the financial statements including the cash flow statement for the year ended 

31st March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year ended 31st March, 2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company’s code of 

conduct. 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 

financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which we are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have 

been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

4. There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the 

year under reference; 

5. There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring 

disclosure in the notes to the financial statements;  

 

6. We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein of 

the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control 

system over financial reporting. 

 

 

Sd/- 

Prahlad Kumar Agarwal                Date:  24/11/2025 

Managing Director & CFO                Place: Ahmedabad 

DIN: 09851691 
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  Annexure- C  

  

ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2024-25 IN RESPECT OF 

OBSERVATIONS MADE BY STATUTORY AUDITORS ON THE ACCOUNTS OF GALA 

GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Audit Observations Management Reply 

1. Considerable payments made as advances to the 

supplier can be quantified subject to detailed 

investigation with the outcome of future events 

only. As per the information and explanations 

provided to us, this matter is sub judice at present. 

ECL Provisioning for the same will be done on 

the basis of a detailed investigation with the 

outcome of future events only. 

Since the matter is sub-judice at present, 

we are also unable to quantify the same.  

 

2. Ind AS adjustments are yet to be affected in the 

books. In light of this, we are not in a position to 

quantify the effect on the Profit and Loss 

accounts and Balance Sheet of the company. 

Management will take care about the 

qualification.  

 

3. During the year the company had made various 

transactions with director/s and other related 

parties. We are unable to verify whether such 

transactions were carried out at arm's length price. 

With reference to the overall situation of the 

company, the company is running a current 

account with the Director/s and section 185 may 

be attracted. 

During the year, the director has not 

entered into the purchase and/or sales 

transaction with the company. However 

Company has availed and repaid the loan 

directly or indirectly from the director. 

The purchase and sales with the related 

parties are carried at prevalent market 

price at that time.  

4. As required under Ind As 109, Financial 

Instruments, the company has not measured the 

loss allowance with regard to the provision of 

expected credit loss for a financial instrument, 

part of the trade receivables are overdue. 

As on date, the company is not expecting 

any credit loss for a financial instrument 

and hence provision has not been made.  

 

5. As required under Ind AS 108, Operating 

Segments, the company has not reported the 

operating segment in respect of various segments. 

The company has entered into trading of many 

commodities other than paper. 

Management will take care about the 

qualification.  

 

6. The company carries Intangible assets worth 

Rs.13 Crore which are not amortized and are 

subject to valuation and we are not in a position 

to quantify. 

Management will obtain the valuation 

report of the intangible asset and if 

amortization needed will be made based 

on the report.  

7. The savings on OTS (One -time Settlement) of 

Rs.76.27 Lakh have been booked in spite of the 

provisional letter resulting in over statement of 

profit and understatement of liability to that 

extent. 

Management has already given its effect in 

the financial statements and profit has 

been booked and liabilities has been 

reduced to that extent.  
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8. Company has made default to pay various 

unsecured loans. 

Management will take care about the 

qualification.  
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 Annexure- D  

FORM NO. MR‐3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

(Pursuant to section 204(1)of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014) 

 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Gala Global Products Limited 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press,  

Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad 380021 

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Gala Global Products Limited (hereinafter called the 

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

  

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit; we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 

on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 

provisions of: 

 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder (as amended from time to 

time); 

 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

  

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992(‘SEBI Act’): 

 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;  

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018;  

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employees Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable as the Company has not issued any such benefits during the 

year under review); 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; (Not Applicable as neither Company has existing Debt Securities nor have issued any 

fresh debt securities during the year under review); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

Applicable as the securities of the Company have not been delisted from any Stock Exchange 

during the year under review;  

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 

applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year 

under review); 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.  

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Standards / Clauses / Regulations of the 

following: 

 

• Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and made 

effective from time to time.  

 

We report that: 

 

During the Audit period under review, the Company has generally complied with all material aspects 

of the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned 

above, subject to following remarks and observations: 

 

A. Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under 

 

The Company has complied with Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, except 

following: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  Gala Global Products Limited 
 

62 | P a g e  
 

SR 

No

. 

Nature of 

Compliance 

Relevant Section 

/ Rules 

Description of 

Observation/ 

Non-Compliance 

Statutory 

Due Date 

Date of 

Filing 

Delay  

1 MGT – 15 

(Report on 

AGM) 

Section 121(1) of 

the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 31(2) 

of the Companies 

(Management and 

Administration) 

Rules, 2014 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

MGT-15 with the 

Registrar of 

Companies for the 

Annual General 

Meeting of FY 

2023-24 held on 

September 30, 

2024. 

October 30, 

2024 

November 

16, 2024 

17 days 

2 AOC-4 

XBRL 

(Financial 

Statement) 

Section 137 of the 

Companies Act, 

2013, read with 

Rule 12(2) of the 

Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 

2014, and Rule 3 

of the Companies 

(Filing of 

Documents and 

Forms in XBRL) 

Rules, 2015 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

AOC-4 XBRL 

with the Registrar 

of Companies for 

the Annual 

General Meeting 

of FY 2023-24 

held on September 

30, 2024. 

October 30, 

2024 

January 22, 

2025  

84 days 

3 MGT-7  

(Annual 

Return) 

Section 92(1) of 

the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 11(1) 

of the Companies 

(Management and 

Administration) 

Rules, 2014 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

MGT-7 with the 

Registrar of 

Companies for the 

Annual General 

Meeting of FY 

2023-24 held on 

September 30, 

2024 

November 

29, 2024 

February 

21, 2025 

84 days 

4 MGT-14  

(Approval of 

Board 

Report & 

Financial 

Result) 

Section 117(1) & 

Section 179(3)(g) 

of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 24 of 

the Companies 

(Management and 

Administration) 

Rules, 2014. 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

MGT-14 with the 

Registrar of 

Companies for the 

Board Resolution 

passed on 

September 6, 

2024, approving 

the Board’s Report 

and Financial 

Statements for the 

October 6, 

2024 

November 

16, 2024 

41 days 
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financial year 

2023–24. 

5 DIR-12 

(Appointme

nt of CS) 

Section 203(1) 

and Section 

170(2) of the 

Companies Act, 

2013 read with 

Rule 8 of the 

Companies 

(Appointment and 

Remuneration of 

Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 

2014 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

DIR-12 with the 

Registrar of 

Companies for the 

appointment of 

Ms. Vandana 

Arun Baldi as the 

Company 

Secretary, whose 

appointment was 

approved at the 

Board meeting 

held on September 

18, 2024 

October 18, 

2024 

November 

26, 2024 

39 days 

6 MGT-14  

(Appointme

nt of 

Secretarial 

Auditor) 

Section 117(1) & 

Section 179(3)(g) 

of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 8 of the 

Companies 

(Meeting of 

Board & its 

Powers) Rules, 

2014 and Rule 24 

of the Companies 

(Management and 

Administration) 

Rules, 2014. 

There was a delay 

in filing Form 

MGT-14 with the 

Registrar of 

Companies for the 

appointment of 

M/s Deepti & 

Associates as the 

Secretarial 

Auditor, whose 

appointment was 

approved at the 

Board meeting 

held on May 23, 

2025. 

June 22, 

2025 

July 04, 

2025 

12 days 

7 SH-7  

(Increase in 

Authorised 

Share 

Capital 

Section 64(1) of 

the Companies 

Act, 2013 and 

rule 15 of the 

Companies 

(Share Capital 

and Debentures) 

Rules, 2014 

The Company has 

increased its 

authorised share 

capital from 

₹30,30,00,000, 

divided into 

6,06,00,000 equity 

shares of ₹5/- 

each, to 

₹49,25,00,000, 

divided into 

9,85,00,000 equity 

shares of ₹5/- 

each, pursuant to 

an ordinary 

June 15, 

2024 

Not filed - 
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resolution passed 

at the Extra-

Ordinary General 

Meeting held on 

May 16, 2024. 

However, the 

Company has not 

filed Form SH-7 

with the Registrar 

of Companies as 

on the date of this 

report. 

8  Right Issue Section 39(4) of 

the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 12 of 

the Companies 

(Prospectus and 

Allotment of 

Securities) Rules, 

2014 

A Board Meeting 

was held on 

October 21, 2024, 

wherein the Board 

approved a rights 

issue of 5,00,000 

equity shares with 

a face value of ₹5 

each, amounting 

to ₹25,00,00,000 

(Rupees Twenty-

five crore only). 

However, 

subsequent to the 

approval, no 

further steps have 

been undertaken 

by the Company 

to implement the 

resolution passed 

at the meeting. 

NA NA NA 

9 Notice of 

AGM 

 

Section 101(1) of 

the Companies 

Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 18 of 

the Companies 

(Management and 

Administration) 

Rules, 2014 

& 

Secretarial 

Standard -2 

Issued by ICSI 

The notice for the 

Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) 

for the financial 

year 2023-24, held 

on September 30, 

2025, was issued 

on September 27, 

2025. 

September 

07, 2025 

September 

27, 2025 

20 days 

10 Cost 

Records 

Section 148(1) of 

the Companies 

Company is 

required to 

- - - 
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Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 3 & 4 

of Companies 

(Cost Records 

and Audit) Rules, 

2014 

maintain cost 

records and it is 

required to be 

audited. However, 

cost records have 

not been 

maintained as 

prescribed, nor the 

same has been 

audited as 

prescribed. 

 

B. SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

The Company has complied with The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, except following; 

 

S

r. 

N

o. 

Complia

nce 

Require

ment 

(Regulati

ons/ 

circulars/ 

guideline

s 

including 

specific 

clause) 

Regulat

ion 

/Circul

ar No. 

Deviatio

ns 

Acti

on 

Tak

en 

by 

Type of Action 

 

(Advisory/Clarificati

on/Fine/Show Cause 

Notice/Warning, etc.) 

 

Fine 

Amo

unt 

Observa

tions/ 

Remark

s of 

Practici

ng 

Compan

y 

Secretar

y 

 

Manage

ment 

Respon

se 

1.  Sharehold

ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

190 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

3,80,0

00/- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

190 days 

in filing 

of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

190 

days. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan
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y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty 

of Rs. 

78,000/- 

and for 

balance 

amount 

the 

compan

y will 

file 

waiver 

applicati

on as 

the same 

was 

occurred 

due to 

dispute 

with 

RTA. 

2.  Reconcili

ation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report - 

Regulatio

n 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

ts) 

Regulatio

n, 2018 

 

Regulati

on 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

on, 

2018 

 

There 

was 

delay in 

filing of 

Reconcil

iation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report fo

r the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

203 

days. 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

203 days 

in filing 

of 

Reconcil

iation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report fo

r the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 
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Exchang

e in 

future. 

3.  Newspap

er 

Advertise

ment - 

Regulatio

n 47 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

 

Regulati

on 47 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

 

There 

was 

delay in 

publicati

on of 

Unaudite

d 

Financia

l Results 

(Standal

one) for 

the 

Quarter 

ended 

June, 

2024 in 

Newspa

per by 1 

day. 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

1 day in 

publicati

on of 

Unaudite

d 

Financial 

Results 

(Standal

one) for 

the 

Quarter 

ended 

June, 

2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

National 

holiday 

for 

Indepen

dence 

Day.  

4.  Annual 

Report 

and 

Notice of 

14th 

Annual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 - 

Regulatio

n 34 & 36 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

Regulati

on 34 & 

36 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

notice of 

14thAnn

ual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

to 

sharehol

ders by 

19 days. 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

19 days 

in giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

notice of 

14thAnnu

al 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

to 

sharehol

ders. 

There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

notice of 

14th 

Annual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

by 19 

days due 

to non-

receipt 

of 

financial

s from 

the 

Statutor

y 

Auditors 
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of the 

Compan

y. 

5.  Sharehold

ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 2 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

4,000/

- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

2 days in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

6.  Corporate 

Governan

ce Report 

- 

Regulatio

n 27(2) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

27(2) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Corporat

e 

Governa

nce 

Report 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 21 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

42,00

0/- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

21 days 

in filing 

of 

Corporat

e 

Governa

nce 

Report 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

Details 

of 

Related 

Party 

Transact

ions 

from the 

Statutor

y 

Auditors 

of the 

Compan

y. The 

compan
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y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

7.  Statement 

of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressal 

Mechanis

m 

- 

Regulatio

n 13(3) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

13(3) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Stateme

nt of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressa

l 

Mechani

sm for 

the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 9 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

9,000/

- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

9 days in 

filing of 

Statemen

t of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressa

l 

Mechani

sm for 

the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

8.  Certificat

e received 

from 

Registrar 

and Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

- 

Regulatio

n 74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

ts) 

Regulatio

ns, 2018. 

Regulati

on 

74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

ons, 

2018 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 15 

days. 

NA NA NA There 

was a 

delay of 

15 days 

in filing 

of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

9.  Sharehold Regulati There NA NA NA There The said 
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ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024 

by 4 

days. 

was a 

delay of 

4 days in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024. 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

10.  Certificat

e received 

from 

Registrar 

and Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

- 

Regulatio

n 74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

ts) 

Regulatio

ns, 2018. 

Regulati

on 

74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

ons, 

2018 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024 

by 5 

days. 

NA NA NA There 

was a 

delay of 

5 days in 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

11.  Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting - 

Regulatio

n 29 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

 

Regulati

on 29 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

 

There 

was 

omission 

of Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting 

dated 

October 

21, 2024 

for 

NA NA NA There 

was 

omission 

of Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting 

dated 

October 

21, 2024 

for 

There 

was an 

unintent

ional 

omissio

n in 

filing of  

prior 

intimati

on of 

Board 

Meeting
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 Approva

l for 

Right 

Issue. 

 

Approva

l for 

Right 

Issue. 

. 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 

future. 

 

We further report that: 

 

We have also examined, on test-check basis, the relevant documents, certificates and licenses 

maintained by the Company according to the following laws applicable specifically to the Company: 

 

a) Environmental Protection Act, 1986. 

 

b) Factories Act, 1948. 

 

c) Payment of Gratuity, Payment of Bonus, Payment of Maternity Benefits, Employees Provident 

Funds, Employee State Insurance. 

 

d) Shops and Establishments Legislations. 

 

We further report that: 

 

Based on the review of compliance mechanism established by the Company, the information provided 

by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, there are 

adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

We further report that: 

 

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect Tax laws, 

technicalities of presentation, figures and numbers as per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 have 

not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to the review by the Statutory 

Auditor(s) and other designated professionals. 

 

We further report that: 

 

During the audit period under review, there were no instances of: 

a) Public Issues / *Right issue of shares/ debentures/sweat equity etc.; 

b) Redemption / buy-back of securities; 

c) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.; 
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d) Foreign technical collaborations. 

*A Board Meeting was held on October 21, 2024, wherein the Board has approved a rights issue of 

5,00,000 equity shares with a face value of ₹5 each, amounting to ₹25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-five 

crore only). However, subsequent to the approval, no further steps have been undertaken by the 

Company to implement the resolution passed at the meeting. 

 

We further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, 

non-executive directors and independent directors including one woman director.  

 

Adequate notices were given to all directors for the Board Meetings, including Committees thereof, 

along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting by the directors. The decisions were carried 

unanimously. 

 

I further report that during the period under review, the company has taken the following decisions 

which have major bearing on the Company’s affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

 

a) M/s H K Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, tendered their resignation as the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company vide their resignation letter dated November 14, 2024, resulting in a casual 

vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors. To fill the said vacancy, the Board of Directors, at its 

meeting held on February 7, 2025, appointed M/s R B Gohil & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

Jamnagar (Firm Registration No. 119360W), as Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

 

b) Company has increased its authorised capital of the Company from Rs. 30,30,00,000/- (Thirty 

Crore Thirty Lakhs Rupees Only) divided into 6,06,00,000 (Six Crore Six Lakhs) Equity Shares 

of Rs. 5/- each to Rs. 49,25,00,000/- (Forty Nine Crore Twenty Five Lakh Rupees Only) divided 

into 9,85,00,000 (Nine Crore Eighty Five Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each ranking pari-passu 

in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company. 

 

c) During the review period, there were no changes in the composition of Board of Directors  

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure –IA and 

forms an integral part of this report 

 

For Deepti & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretary 

 

Sd/- 

CS Deepti Grover  

(Proprietor) 

FCS: 7654 CP: 17546 

Peer Review No: 698/2022 

                

 

 

 

 

      Date: November 24, 2025 

                                              Place: New Delhi     

 

UDIN: F007654G002006189 
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ANNEXURE - IA. OF SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Gala Global Products Limited 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press,  

Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad 380021 

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 

Management’s Responsibility 

 

• It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise 

proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws, standards rules and 

regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

• Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records and procedures followed by 

the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

 

• We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is 

reasonably adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

• We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Account 

of the Company. 

 

• Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation Letter about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

Disclaimer 

 

• The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For Deepti & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretary 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

CS Deepti Grover  

(Proprietor) 

FCS: 7654 CP: 17546 

Peer Review No: 698/2022 

                

 

 

 

 

      Date: November 24, 2025 

                                 Place: New Delhi     

 

UDIN: F007654G002006189 
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Annexure- E 

 

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of 

Gala Global Products Limited  

(CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243) 

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 

 

The Members, 

Gala Global Products Limited  

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate,  

B/H Old Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar,  

Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India, 380021 

 

We have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Gala Global Products Limited having its Registered 

Office at B-1, Laxmi Com. Co. Op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad 

380021. Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the listed entity and also the information provided by the listed entity, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the listed entity has, during the review period covering the financial year 

ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

listed entity has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined:  

a) all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by Gala Global 

Products Limited ("the Listed entity"),  

b) the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,  

c) website of the listed entity,  

d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 

certification; 

 

For the year ended March 31, 2025 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions 

of:  

 

a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations, 

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and  
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b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the 

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India ("SEBI");  

 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 

been examined, include: - 

 

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable as no securities issued during the term under review 

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;  

d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

Applicable as no securities were bought back during the term under review 

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable as no such scheme was introduced for Employees 

f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

Not Applicable as no Debt securities are listed or issued by the Company 

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable as no such securities are listed or issued by the Company 

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not 

applicable for the review period 

k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;  

 

And based on the above examination and confirmation received from management of the Company as 

and wherever required, I hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance status of the 

listed entity is appended as below: 

 

a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below (Table a): - 

 

S

r. 

N

o. 

Complia

nce 

Require

ment 

(Regulati

ons/ 

circulars/ 

guideline

s 

including 

specific 

clause) 

Regulat

ion 

/Circul

ar No. 

Deviatio

ns 

Acti

on 

Tak

en 

by 

Type of Action 

 

(Advisory/Clarificati

on/Fine/Show Cause 

Notice/Warning, etc.) 

 

Fine 

Amo

unt 

Observa

tions/ 

Remark

s of 

Practici

ng 

Compan

y 

Secretar

y 

 

Manage

ment 

Respon

se 
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12.  Sharehold

ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

190 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

3,80,0

00/- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

190 days 

in filing 

of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

190 

days. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty 

of Rs. 

78,000/- 

and for 

balance 

amount 

the 

compan

y will 

file 

waiver 

applicati

on as 

the same 

was 

occurred 

due to 

dispute 

with 

RTA. 

13.  Reconcili

ation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report - 

Regulati

on 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

There 

was 

delay in 

filing of 

Reconcil

iation of 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

203 days 

in filing 

of 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-
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Regulatio

n 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

ts) 

Regulatio

n, 2018 

 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

on, 

2018 

 

share 

capital 

audit 

report fo

r the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024 by 

203 

days. 

Reconcil

iation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report fo

r the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2024. 

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 

future. 

14.  Newspap

er 

Advertise

ment - 

Regulatio

n 47 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

 

Regulati

on 47 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

 

There 

was 

delay in 

publicati

on of 

Unaudite

d 

Financia

l Results 

(Standal

one) for 

the 

Quarter 

ended 

June, 

2024 in 

Newspa

per by 1 

day. 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

1 day in 

publicati

on of 

Unaudite

d 

Financial 

Results 

(Standal

one) for 

the 

Quarter 

ended 

June, 

2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

National 

holiday 

for 

Indepen

dence 

Day.  

15.  Annual 

Report 

and 

Notice of 

14th 

Annual 

General 

Regulati

on 34 & 

36 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay of 

19 days 

in giving 

Annual 

Report 

There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 
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Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 - 

Regulatio

n 34 & 36 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

2015 notice of 

14thAnn

ual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

to 

sharehol

ders by 

19 days. 

and 

notice of 

14thAnnu

al 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

to 

sharehol

ders. 

notice of 

14th 

Annual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

2023-24 

by 19 

days due 

to non-

receipt 

of 

financial

s from 

the 

Statutor

y 

Auditors 

of the 

Compan

y. 

16.  Sharehold

ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 2 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

4,000/

- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

2 days in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

17.  Corporate 

Governan

ce Report 

- 

Regulati

on 

27(2) of 

SEBI 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

42,00

0/- 

and 

There 

was a 

delay of 

21 days 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 
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Regulatio

n 27(2) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

Corporat

e 

Governa

nce 

Report 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 21 

days. 

GST in filing 

of 

Corporat

e 

Governa

nce 

Report 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

Details 

of 

Related 

Party 

Transact

ions 

from the 

Statutor

y 

Auditors 

of the 

Compan

y. The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

18.  Statement 

of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressal 

Mechanis

m 

- 

Regulatio

n 13(3) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

13(3) of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Stateme

nt of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressa

l 

Mechani

sm for 

the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 9 

days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

9,000/

- 

and 

GST 

There 

was a 

delay of 

9 days in 

filing of 

Statemen

t of 

Grievanc

e 

Redressa

l 

Mechani

sm for 

the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty.  

19.  Certificat

e received 

from 

Regulati

on 

74(5) of 

There 

was a 

delay in 

NA NA NA There 

was a 

delay of 

The said 

delay 

was 
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Registrar 

and Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

- 

Regulatio

n 74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

ts) 

Regulatio

ns, 2018. 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

ons, 

2018 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024 

by 15 

days. 

15 days 

in filing 

of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Septemb

er, 2024. 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

20.  Sharehold

ing 

Pattern 

- 

Regulatio

n 31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024 

by 4 

days. 

NA NA NA There 

was a 

delay of 

4 days in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

21.  Certificat

e received 

from 

Registrar 

and Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

- 

Regulatio

n 74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposito

ries and 

Participan

Regulati

on 

74(5) of 

SEBI 

(Deposi

tories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

ons, 

2018 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

for the 

NA NA NA There 

was a 

delay of 

5 days in 

filing of 

Certifica

te 

received 

from 

Registrar 

and 

Share 

Transfer 

Agent 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt 

of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 
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ts) 

Regulatio

ns, 2018. 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024 

by 5 

days. 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

Decemb

er, 2024. 

payment 

dispute.  

22.  Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting - 

Regulatio

n 29 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulatio

ns, 2015 

 

 

Regulati

on 29 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

 

There 

was 

omission 

of Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting 

dated 

October 

21, 2024 

for 

Approva

l for 

Right 

Issue. 

 

NA NA NA There 

was 

omission 

of Prior 

Intimatio

n of 

Board 

Meeting 

dated 

October 

21, 2024 

for 

Approva

l for 

Right 

Issue. 

There 

was an 

unintent

ional 

omissio

n in 

filing of  

prior 

intimati

on of 

Board 

Meeting

. 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 

future. 

 

b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous 

reports (Table b): 

 

S

r. 

N

o. 

Complia

nce 

Require

ment 

(Regulat

ions/ 

circular

s/ 

guidelin

es 

includin

g 

specific 

Regulat

ion 

/Circul

ar No. 

Deviatio

ns 

Acti

on 

Tak

en 

by 

Type of Action 

 

(Advisory/Clarificatio

n/Fine/Show Cause 

Notice/Warning, etc.) 

 

Fine 

Amo

unt 

Observa

tions/ 

Remark

s of 

Practici

ng 

Compan

y 

Secretar

y 

 

Manage

ment 

Respons

e 
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clause) 

1.  Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

- 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015. 

Regulati

on 

31(1)(b) 

of SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was a 

delay in 

filing of 

Sharehol

ding 

Pattern 

for the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2023 by 

18 days. 

BS

E 

Fine Rs. 

40,12

0/- 

Inclu

ding 

GST. 

The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute.  

The 

compan

y 

has duly 

paid 

Penalty 

of Rs. 

40,120/- 

and 

complia

nce 

officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 

future. 

2.  Reconcil

iation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report - 

Regulati

on 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposit

ories and 

Participa

nts) 

Regulati

on, 2018 

 

Regulati

on 76 of 

SEBI 

(Deposit

ories 

and 

Particip

ants) 

Regulati

on, 

2018 

 

There 

was 

delay in 

filing of 

Reconcil

iation of 

share 

capital 

audit 

report fo

r the 

quarter 

ended 

June 

2023 by 

9 days. 

NA NA NA The said 

delay 

was 

caused 

due to 

non-

receipt of 

reports 

from the 

RTA of 

the 

Compan

y due to 

payment 

dispute. 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 

future. 

3.  Annual 

Report 

and 

Notice of 

13th 

Annual 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

22-23 - 

Regulati

on 36 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

notice of 

13thAnnu

al 

NA NA NA There 

was 

delay in 

giving 

Annual 

Report 

and 

notice of 

13th 

Annual 

Complia

nce 

Officer 

will 

ensure 

timely 

filing to 

the 

Exchang

e in 
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Regulati

on 36 of 

SEBI 

(LODR)  

Regulati

ons, 

2015 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

22-23 to 

sharehol

ders by 6 

days. 

General 

Meeting 

for FY 

22-23 by 

6 days 

due to 

non-

receipt of 

financial

s from 

the 

Statutory 

Auditors 

of the 

Compan

y. 

future. 

4.  Annual 

Listing 

Fees for 

the F.Y. 

2023-24 

In 

Accorda

nce with 

the 

Listing 

Agreem

ent with 

Exchan

ge. 

Non – 

payment 

of 

Annual 

Listing 

Fees for 

the F.Y. 

2023-24 

BS

E 

Interest levied NA The 

company 

has not 

paid 

Annual 

Listing 

Fees for 

FY 

2023-24 

due to 

administr

ative 

reasons. 

The 

Compan

y has 

duly 

paid said 

Fees at a 

later 

date 

along 

with 

Interest. 

The 

abundan

t 

Precauti

on will 

be taken 

for 

timely 

payment 

to the 

Exchang

es. 

 

I hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity with the 

following requirements: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Compliance 

status 

(Yes/No/NA) 

Observations 

/Remarks by 

PCS 

1.  Secretarial Standards: No As provided in 
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The compliances of the listed entity are in accordance 

with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries India (ICSI), as 

notified by the Central Government under section 

118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and mandatorily 

applicable. 

point no 3 of 

Table (a) of this 

report 

2.  Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 

 

 All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations are 

adopted with the approval of board of directors of 

the listed entities. 

 

 All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 

Regulations and have been reviewed & timely 

updated as per the regulations/circulars/guidelines 

issued by SEBI. 

Yes  

 

- 

3.  Maintenance and disclosures on Website: 

 The Listed entity is maintaining a functional 

website. 

 

 Timely dissemination of the documents/ 

information under a separate section on the 

website. 

  

 Web-links provided in annual corporate 

governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are 

accurate and specific which redirects to the relevant 

document(s)/ section of the website. 

Yes  

 

- 

4.  Disqualification of Director: 

 

None of the Director of the Company are disqualified 

under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 as 

confirmed by the listed entity. 

Yes  

 

- 

5.  Details related to Subsidiaries of listed entities have 

been examined w.r.t.: 

 

 Identification of material subsidiary companies 

 

 Requirements with respect to disclosure of material 

as well as other subsidiaries 

NA The Company do 

not have any 

subsidiaries. 

6.  Preservation of Documents: 

 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining records 

as prescribed under SEBI Regulations and disposal of 

records as per Policy of Preservation of Documents and 

Archival policy prescribed under SEBI LODR 

Yes  

 

 

- 
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Regulations, 2015. 

7.  Performance Evaluation: 

 

The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation 

of the Board, Independent Directors and the 

Committees at the start of every financial year as 

prescribed in SEBI Regulations. 

Yes  

 

 

- 

8.  Related Party Transactions: 

 

 The listed entity has obtained prior approval of 

Audit Committee for all related party transactions. 

 

 In case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity 

shall provide detailed reasons along with 

confirmation whether the transactions were 

subsequently approved/ratified/rejected by the 

Audit committee. 

Yes  

 

 

 

- 

9.  Disclosure of events or information: 

 

The listed entity has provided all the required 

disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with Schedule 

III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 within the time 

limits prescribed thereunder. 

Yes Except as 

mentioned in 

Table (a) of the 

this report 

10.  Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

 

The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) 

& 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Yes There was a 

delay in 

recording certain 

entries in the 

Structural Digital 

Database; 

however, they 

were 

subsequently 

captured at a later 

stage. 

11.  Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if 

any: 

 

No Actions taken against the listed entity/ its 

promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI or by 

Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard 

Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various 

circulars) under SEBI Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder. 

No As provided in 

Table (a) of said 

report 

12.  Resignation of statutory auditors from the listed 

entity or its material subsidiaries:  

 

In case of resignation of statutory auditor from the 

Yes  

 

 

- 
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listed entity or any of its material subsidiaries during 

the financial year, the listed entity and / or its material 

subsidiary(ies) has / have complied with paragraph 6.1 

and 6.2 of section V-D of chapter V of the Master 

Circular on compliance with the provisions of the 

LODR Regulations by listed entities read with 

CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated October 18, 2019. 

13.  Additional Non-compliances, if any: 

 

No additional non-compliance observed for any SEBI 

regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 

Yes  

- 

 

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 

 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information 

furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

 

2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and 

information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books of 

Accounts of the listed entity. 

 

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of applicable 

compliances. 

 

Thanking you, 

 

For Deepti & Associates  

Practicing Company Secretaries  

 

Sd/- 

Deepti Grover  

Proprietor  

FCS. No. 7654 | C.P.: 17546  

FRN: S2016DE438900                                                                                   Date: May 30, 2025 

UDIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243           Place: New Delhi 
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Annexure- F  

 

DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 

with Gala Global Products Limited Code of Business conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 

2025. 

 

Registered office: 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. 

Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press, 

Sukhramnagar Ahmedabad, 

Gujarat -  380021    

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

GALA GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

 

                                                  Sd/- 

 

Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

 

       

 

 

 Prahlad Kumar Agarwal 

 Managing Director & CFO 

             DIN: 09851691 
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Annexure G 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)) 

 

To, 

The Members of 

Gala Global Products Limited 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co-op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press,  

Sukhramnagar, Ahmedabad Gujarat, India, 380021 

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the 

Directors of Gala Global Products Limited, having CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 and having 

registered office at B-1, Laxmi Com. Co-op. Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press, Sukhramnagar, 

Ahmedabad Gujarat, India, 380021 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by 

the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 

Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary 

and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the 

Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 

2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of 

companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA), or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director Designation DIN Date of 

appointment in 

Company 

1 Vishal Gala Chairperson,  

Executive Director 

00692090 14-12-2010 

2 Alpa Pandya Executive Director 07013011 03-03-2023 

3 Prahlad Kumar Agarwal Managing Director & 

CFO 

09851691 10-01-2023 

4 Vipul Maru Non-Executive - 

Independent Director 

09723476 03-09-2022 

5 Umang Selani Non-Executive - 

Independent Director 

09706034 03-09-2022 

6 Dhruv Modi Non-Executive - 

Independent Director 

09706017 10-02-2023 

7 Yagnik Movaliya Non-Executive - 

Independent Director 

10937659 16-04-2025 
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Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based 

on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

For Deepti & Associates  

Practicing Company Secretaries  

 

 

Sd/-  

Deepti Grover  

Proprietor  

FCS. No. 7654 | C.P.: 17546  

FRN: S2016DE438900  

UDIN: F007654G002006035       Date: November 24, 2025  

Place: New Delhi 
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Annexure H  

 

PCS CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

 

To,  

The Members  

Gala Global Products Limited  

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Gala Global Products 

Limited (‘the Company’) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated under 

Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para-C, D and E 

of Schedule V) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

 

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by 

the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the 

Company. 

 

In our opinion, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, and based on the explanations and 

representations provided to us, except as stated in Annexure E to this Report, the Company has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Chapter IV of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither as assurance as to the further viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

 

For Deepti & Associates  

Practicing Company Secretaries  

 

Sd/-  

Deepti Grover  

Proprietor  

FCS. No. 7654 | C.P.: 17546  

FRN: S2016DE438900       Date: November 24, 2025  

UDIN: F007654G2005914      Place: New Delhi  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 

 

 OVERVIEW OF THE INDUSTRY: 

 

The writing instruments market in India witnessed a value of US$ 656.92 million in 2021 and is 

estimated to reach US$ 1862.95 million by 2030, with a CAGR of 7.64% from 2023 to 2030. Writing 

holds significance from childhood to formal education, making writing instruments crucial for 

communication. The market has gained momentum due to the role of handwriting in expressing 

personality, emotions and attitudes. The government’s focus on education as a fundamental right has 

expanded the consumer base for writing instruments in India. In India the stationery industry is 

collapsed into paper and non-paper stationery with the latter comprising the larger share in the market. 

In the Asia-Pacific region, India is one of the biggest stationery markets. Based on distribution 

channels, the stationery shops are projected to acquire a fair portion of market share, with the demand 

rising on account of wide availability of products like glitter pens, colour pencils and cartoon rubbers 

that have become the perfect choice for children and are expected to secure growth of the segment. 

 

Stationery Products Market size was valued at USD 140 billion in 2023 and is anticipated to register a 

CAGR of over 3.7% between 2024 and 2032. The market is a dynamic and evolving sector that 

encompasses a wide range of essential items, from traditional paper and pens to modern 

organizational tools and creative supplies. This market plays a crucial role in serving diverse 

consumer needs, including education, office work, artistry, and personal expression. With the rise of 

remote work and digitalization, the stationery industry has adapted by incorporating innovative 

designs, eco-friendly materials, and technology-integrated products. The increasing global literacy 

rates contribute significantly to the demand for educational materials, such as notebooks, pens, and 

other stationery items. The global stationery products market size to be valued at USD 128.5 billion 

by 2025 and is expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.1% during the 

forecast period. Growing literacy rates across the globe and an increasing number of youths inclining 

towards higher education are among the prominent factors for market growth. Furthermore, the rapid 

increase in the number of start-ups is propelling market growth. According to a report by NASSCOM, 

more than 1200 startups came into existence in 2018. Thus, increasing employment in these sectors is 

impacting market growth significantly. Government initiatives have led to an increase in the number 

of schools and colleges in rural as well as urban areas, which is directly impacting market growth. 
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KEY MARKET TRENDS:  

 

 Growing Demand for Eco-Friendly Products: Consumers are seeking sustainable and eco-friendly 

stationery products, driving manufacturers to innovate and offer products made from recycled 

materials. 

 

 Increasing Online Sales: The rise of e-commerce platforms has made it convenient for consumers 

to purchase stationery products online, boosting market growth.  

 

 Expansion of Educational Institutions: The growing number of schools, colleges, and universities 

is driving demand for stationery and supplies, fueling market growth.  

 

 Rising Demand for Office Supplies: The increasing number of businesses and corporate entities 

globally is driving demand for office-related stationery supplies.  

 

PRINTING INDUSTRY IN INDIA:  

 

The market size of school stationery supplies in India reached US$ 2,240.1 million in 2022 and is 

projected to reach US$ 3,204.9 million by 2028, growing at a CAGR of 6.06% from 2023 to 2028. 

With over 288 million school and college students, India’s stationery sector has tremendous growth 

potential. School stationery is an essential set of equipment used by students and staff for various 

tasks such as studying, note-taking, drawing and assignments. It includes items like papers, pens, 

cases, files, notebooks, pencils, erasers and sharpeners, made from materials such as wood, metal, 

plastic and paper. As per a survey by the Ministry of Education, India has a total of 1,072 universities. 

During the academic year 2022-23, India had a total of 8,902 institutes approved by the All-India 

Council for Technical Education (AICTE). Among these institutes, there were 3,577 offering 

undergraduate programs, 4,786 offering postgraduate programs and 3,957 offering diploma programs 

Under the Union Budget 2022-23, the government of India has allocated H1.12 lakh crores (US$ 13.5 

billion) crores in the coming fiscal year on education. The highest ever increase of around 8.2%. The 
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global packaging printing market is expected to grow from $405.20 billion in 2024 to $596.49 billion 

by 2029, at a CAGR of 8.04% during the forecast period. 

 

HUMAN CAPITAL: 

 

In keeping with our employee-first approach, we quickly instituted measures to trace all employees of 

the Company and to assure ourselves of their well-being. 

To provide a safe work environment for our employees and partners, the following actions have been 

taken: 

  Established processes for reporting, quarantining and supporting any personnel suspected of or 

confirmed having tested positive for the disease. 

  Established detailed protocol for evacuation and sanitization of our office buildings in the event 

of a suspected or confirmed health incident.  

 Increased cadence of sanitization of our office facilities and transport vehicles, and implemented 

various social distancing measures in our campuses. 

 Ensured availability of thermal scanners, masks, hygiene products, medicines and medical 

facilities at our offices. 

 Created detailed plans for enabling return-to-work in a phased manner, that emphasize social 

distancing and hygiene. 

 

SEGMENT GROWTH DRIVERS:  

Availability of Labor, Raw Material and Capital, strong customer base is must for all the segments 

and hence required in this industry also. Keeping updates of all the available and updated 

technological changes. Rising population, Urbanization, Rising literacy, and education spending are 

key growth drivers for our industry. 

 OPPORTUNITIES: 

    
 

India has averted the effects of the global slump and continues to grow. More and more multinational 

companies are now targeting India as the hub for manufacturing and exporting. This provides good 

opportunities to component manufacturers and service providers for accelerated growth. Project 

expansion is in progress demanding many companies. 

 

 

 Digital Printing Growth: The increasing demand for digital printing offers opportunities for 

business expansion. 
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 E-commerce Integration: Developing an online ordering system can tap into a broader market. 

 

 Niche Market Specialization: Specializing in niche markets, like 3D printing or eco-friendly 

printing, can open new revenue streams. 

 

 Partnerships with Design Firms: Collaborating with design firms can lead to a steady stream of 

projects and mutual growth. 

 

 CHALLENGES FOR PRINTING INDUSTRY: 

 

Maintaining existing customer base, servicing them with the goal of retaining their business is 

imperative. Also, the importance of the retention of expert employees cannot be ignored. Building & 

communicating will always be the most valuable investment organization makes to delivering 

sustainable growth. The pressure of senior managers to deliver will intensify significantly in future 

with fierce competition.  

 

 Technological Advancements: Rapid changes in printing technology may require continuous 

investment to stay competitive.  

 Economic Fluctuations: Economic downturns can lead to reduced spending on printing services.  

 Environmental Regulations: Increasing environmental regulations can impact printing practices 

and material usage.  

 Online Marketing Trends: The shift towards digital marketing can reduce demand for traditional 

print advertising.  

 

 STRENGHTS:  

 

 Advanced Printing Technology: State-of-the-art printing technology ensures high-quality 

outputs.  

 Unique and Carefully Curated Product Selection: Meticulously selected products offer a diverse 

array of premium stationery items.  

 Diverse Service Range: Offering a wide range of printing services, from digital to offset printing, 

appeals to various customer needs.  

 Strong Supplier Relationships: Having reliable suppliers ensures consistent quality and timely 

delivery of materials.  

 

 WEAKNESSES:  

 

 Limited Brand Recognition: New businesses lack established brand recognition and customer 

loyalty.  

 High Operating Costs: Managing the costs of printing materials and equipment maintenance can 

be challenging.  

 Dependence on Skilled Staff: Relying on skilled technicians for complex printing tasks can be a 

bottleneck.  

 Limited Resources for Marketing and Promotion: Small businesses may have a more limited 

budget for marketing and promotion.  
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FINANCIAL REVIEW, FY 2024-25 AND OUTLOOK: 

 

 Revenues from operations for the year has decreased to Rs. 4178.29 Lakhs compared to Rs. 

7530.06 Lakhs crores in the previous fiscal year. 

 

 PAT for the year is Rs. (449.38) Lakhs compared to Rs. 20.98 Lakhs in the previous fiscal year. 

 

The Company is projected to generate profitable and sustainable growth in foreseeable future. 

 

 SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE:  

 

At present, Gala is positioned to be the quality stationery provider. Company is presently into:  

 School and Office Stationery  

 Educational Products  

 Digital and Offset Printing  

 

 OUTLOOK:  

 

We continue to make concrete strategies to ensure the leverage of our leadership market position. We 

continue to create capabilities, infrastructure, content and platforms aligned to emerging consumer 

preferences and audience behaviour. 

 

 RISKS & CONCERN:  

 

 Technological Obsolescence: Rapid advancements in printing technology can make existing 

equipment obsolete.  

 Environmental Regulations: Stringent environmental regulations can increase operational costs.  

 Fluctuating Raw Material Costs: Volatility in paper, ink, and other raw material prices can impact 

profitability.  

 Intense Competition: High competition can lead to reduced market share and pricing pressure.  

 Digitalization: Shift to digital media can reduce demand for traditional printing services.  

 Declining Demand: Decreasing demand for traditional stationery products due to digitalization.  

 Competition from Alternative Products: Alternative products like digital note-taking tools can 

replace traditional stationery.  

 Raw Material Price Fluctuations: Fluctuations in paper, plastic, and other raw material prices can 

impact profitability.  

 Supply Chain Disruptions: Disruptions in supply chains can lead to stockouts and lost sales.  

 Changing Consumer Preferences: Shifts in consumer preferences towards eco-friendly and 

sustainable products can require product adaptations.  

 

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS ANDTHEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Control including internal financial controls. 

Company has an Audit Committee headed by an Independent director, inter-alia, to oversee 

company’s financial reporting process, disclosure of financial information, and reviewing the 

performance of statutory and internal auditors with management. The internal control system, 

including internal financial controls of the Company, is monitored by an independent internal audit 
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team, which encompasses examination/ periodic reviews to ascertain adequacy of internal controls 

and compliance to Company’s policies. The committee also looks into related party transactions, 

preventive controls, investigations, as well as other areas requiring mandatory review per applicable 

laws. The powers of Committee, inter-alia, include seeking information from any employee, obtaining 

outside legal or other professional advice, and investigating any activity of the Company within the 

committee’s term of reference. 

 

 DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

 

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 Change Reason 

Current ratio 1.74 1.92 -0.18 NA 

Debt – Equity ratio 0.76 0.60 0.16 NA 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.16 0.84 -0.68 NA 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 18.25 6.24 12.01 Decline in 

Business 

Interest Coverage Ratio -0.21 1.40 -1.61 Decline in 

Business 

Net Profit Margin -10.76% 0.28% -11.04 Decline in 

Business 

Operating Profit Margin -8.84% 0.70% -9.54 Decline in 

Business 

Return on Net Worth -11.82% 0.49% 12.31 Decline in 

Business 

 

 

 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

The statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" section describes the 

Company's objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be "forward 

looking statements” within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can 

differ materially from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic 

conditions, Government policies and other incidental factors. 

 

Registered office: 

B-1, Laxmi Com. Co.Op. 

Estate, B/H Old Navneet Press, 

Sukhramnagar Ahmedabad, 

Gujarat -  380021    

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

GALA GLOBAL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

CIN: L29109GJ2010PLC063243 

 

      

                                             Sd/-                                              Sd/- 

 

Date: 24/11/2025 

Place: Ahmedabad 

         Prahlad Kumar Agarwal 

    Managing Director & CFO 

DIN: 09851691 

             Alpa Pandya 

             Director 

             DIN: 07013011 
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Annexure I 

Form No. AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NA  

2. Details of material contract or arrangement or transaction at arm’s length basis:  

 

Name of 

Related 

Parties  

 

Nature of 

contracts / 

arrangement / 

transactions  

 

Duration of 

the contracts 

/ 

arrangement 

/ transactions  

 

Salient terms of 

the contracts / 

arrangement / 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any  

 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Board, if 

any  

 

Amount 

paid as 

advances, 

if any  

 

Vishal 

Mulchandbhai 

Gala 

Salary 01-04-2024 to 

31-03-2025  

 

Remuneration paid 

to Director of 

Rs18,00,000  

- 18,00,000 

Vishal 

Mulchandbhai 

Gala 

Loan Received  01-04-2024 to 

31-03-2025  

 

Loan Received 

from Director of 

Rs. 4,68,75,000  

- 4,68,75,000 

Vishal 

Mulchandbhai 

Gala 

Loan Paid 01-04-2024 to 

31-03-2025  

 

Loan paid to 

Director of Rs. 

1,66,08,000 

- 1,66,08,000 

Papers Plaza Loan Received 01-04-2024 to 

31-03-2025  

 

Loan Received 

from Director of 

Rs. 17,78,000 

- 17,78,000 

Alpa Pandya Loan Paid 01-04-2024 to 

31-03-2025  

 

Loan paid to 

Director of Rs. 

38,000 

- 38,000 
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